MINUTES
of the

COUNCIL OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI
December 19, 2014

THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI, STATE OF
HAWAII, WAS HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, KALANA 0 MAUI BUILDING,
WAILUKU, HAWAII, ON FRIDAY, DECEMBER 19, 2014, BEGINNING AT 9:02 A.M., WITH
VICE-CHAIR ROBERT CARROLL PRESIDING.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: The regular Council meeting, County Council meeting of
December 19, 2014 is convened at 9:05 a.m.
Clerk.

ROLL CALL
PRESENT: COUNCILMEMBERS ELEANORA COCHRAN, DONALD G.
COUCH JR., S. STACY CRIVELLO, DONALD S. GUZMAN,
G. RIKI HOKAMA, MICHAEL P. VICTORINO, MICHAEL B.
WHITE, AND VICE-CHAIR ROBERT CARROLL.
EXCUSED: CHAIR GLADYS C. BAISA.

DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK JOSIAH NISHITA: Mr. Chair, there are eight Members present
and one Member excused. A quorum is present to conduct the business of the
Council.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
All those present will please stand to pledge allegiance to the flag.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Members of the Council, and others in attendance, rose and recited the Pledge
of Allegiance.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: We will now hear opening remarks from Mr. Victorino.
Mr. Victorino.

OPENING REMARKS
The opening remarks were offered by Councilmember Michael P. Victorino.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Before we proceed, anyone that has
anything that makes noise, cell phones, beepers or anything else, please silence it.
Decorum of this Chamber shall be maintained at all times.
Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chair, proceeding with the presentation of testimony on
agenda items. We have established limited telephone interactive communication that
enables individuals from Hana, Lanai, and Molokai, to provide testimony from our
District Offices.
Individuals who wish to offer testimony from Hana, Lanai, and Molokai, should now
sign up with District Office staff. Individuals who wish to offer testimony in the
Chamber, please sign up at the desk located in the eighth floor lobby just outside the
Chamber door. Testimony at all locations is limited to the items listed on today's
agenda.
Pursuant to the Rules of the Council, each testifier is allowed to testify for up to three
minutes with one minute to conclude if requested. When testifying, please state your
name and the name of any organization you represent.
Hana Office, please identify yourself and introduce your first testifier.
MS. DAWN LONO: Good morning, Chair. This is Dawn Lono at the Hana Office and there
is no one waiting to testify.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Thank you.
Lanai Office, please identify yourself and introduce your first testifier.
MS. DENISE FERNANDEZ: Good morning, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez on Lanai and
there is no one waiting to testify.
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DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Thank you.
Molokai Office, please identify yourself and introduce your first testifier.
MS. ELLA ALCON: Good morning, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokai and there is no one
here waiting to testify.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Thank you.
Mr. Chair, we have seventeen individuals who have signed up to testify in the Council
Chamber. The first person to testify in the Chamber is Sue Kiang testifying on
Committee Report 14-156. Ms. Kiang will be followed by Elaine Malina.

PRESENTATION OF WRITTEN OR ORAL TESTIMONY
MS. SUE KIANG (testifying on Committee Report No. 14-156):
Good morning. My name is Sue Kiang, a 30-year resident of Kihei.
If there were a pet being abused in my neighborhood, domestic violence, or even an
immigrant family being made uncomfortable, I would speak up. Today I have taken
vacation time to advocate for the trees in my neighborhood. It almost seems like the
system holds it against them because they grow. If there's a problem with the
asphalt we don't fault the street, we fault the tree. If they, if their leaves make rubbish
or you slip on the nuts or it gets in the way of our view, oftentimes the plan is just to
chop it down.
Instead, perhaps if we thought of them as mini-factories, ones that are there to clean
the air, to create coolness with the shade they provide, or the way they utilize the
moisture in the air. In fact, Gene Thompson, a long-time resident who's no longer
with us would regularly take temperature readings at his condo that was well shaded,
and it consistently came out five-to-ten degrees less than what gets reported out from
the airport readings. This would be a plus if the visitors knew that where they were
was cooled by trees.
When there's a tree present in a parking lot, there's five times more places that that
raindrop can fall before it hits the ground. If it comes down directly to the pavement it
picks up the oil and the pollution and washes it into the ocean. Trees provide a
sound barrier or attract birds or a place for the wind to make a pleasant noise.
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The University of Illinois did a study and when the demographics were just the same
and the only difference was that there were trees that people could look out their
windows at, people felt safer in their homes, they felt better about their neighbors.
There was less domestic violence, and in fact, patients in the hospital who can look
out and see green heal faster.
So I'm here today to lobby for the Monkey Pods that are on South Kihei Road, and I
share a true story of walking down the street. And you know when you drive, it
always looks so much closer. So I was going from Foodland down to St. Theresa's
and I passed a family of tourists, and you could tell by the way they were dressed
and their excitement and what was being said. Well, on the return trip they were
red-faced, they were cranky. The little kid was dragging behind. And if I would have
realized how close he was perhaps to a health event I might have spoken up, but
there's no trees along that route of the sidewalks.
So please, when you consider the exceptional tree nominations today, think kindly of
the ones that are on South Kihei Road. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification from the testifier? Hearing none, thank you.
Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: The next person to testify is Elaine Malina testifying on
Committee Report 14-156. She will be followed by Mike Moran.

MS. ELAINE MALINA (testifying on Committee Report No. 14-156):
Good morning. My name is Elaine Malina. I'm the President of Maui Green and
Beautiful which is formerly Maui Outdoor Circle. I'm a certified arborist since 1997,
and I've been working in the landscape industry on Maui here for the past 30 years.
Also, Kihei is my home.
I am here to ask all of you to vote yes to the nomination of the four Kihei Monkey Pod
trees to be added to the Exceptional Trees Ordinance of Maui County. These four
Monkey Pod trees have brought a community together. I was even part of the
original sign wavers way back a couple years ago to save these trees, and they were
saved. But now we're asking for one more step is to make them exceptional trees in
Maui County.
Not only will this be the first exceptional tree in South Maui, trees in South Maui, but
also these 4 trees of the stand of 14 Monkey Pod trees along South Kihei Road have
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been recognized and nominated by the Maui County Arborist Committee which is a
group of tree-knowledgeable people. The four Monkey Pods were nominated as
exceptional based on their aesthetics, location, and historical value of their canopy.
These trees are the only group of street trees on Kihei Road that create such a
beautiful shady oasis until you reach Wailea which is miles away from these trees.
Remember the benefits of trees which Sue has covered, and I'm not going to repeat
them again. I'm going to make this a little shorter. But trees return developed areas
to a more natural environment, and we don't want these trees to disappear, we want
them to be preserved. Yes, there are maintenance issues but so are buildings,
buildings have maintenance issues and we don't take down our buildings.
So I'm asking you to please vote yes for these four beautiful and healthy Monkey Pod
trees on South Kihei Road. Thank you and Merry Christmas.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification from the testifier? Hearing none, thank you.
Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: The next person to testify is Mike Moran testifying on
Committee Report 14-156 and Bill 85. He will be followed by Jonathan Starr.

MR. MIKE MORAN [testifying on Committee Report No. 14-156 and Bill No. 85 (2014)1:
Aloha and good morning. Wow, a sea of red and green, how beautiful. Mahalo for
the opportunity to submit testimony. Mike Moran, President of the Kihei Community
Association testifying for the Association in favor of Item 14-156.
As a matter of policy, KCA advocates for street trees to provide cooling shade, wind
abatement, synthesis of carbon dioxide, bird habitat, and natural beauty. But we see
limited evidence of that policy along our roads and streets, especially along South
Kihei Road. The one extreme exception to this lacking is a single block on the makai
side fronting two residential vacation condos in the 900 block area of South Kihei
Road in North Kihei with a glorious stand of 14 Monkey Pods, 4 of which we are
considering this morning for which our community is asking for protection as
exceptional trees.
The Council is certainly aware that allowing specific trees to be named exceptional
does not guarantee their safety or their natural perpetuity but simply offers a layer of
protection, and boy do these trees need protection. While I personally am only aware
of the unfounded threats and attacks on them in this century, more senior KCA and
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community members advise of similar attacks in the 20th Century as well. But just
going back to 2011 which is when I understand prompted this proposed action which
took all these years to reach the Council, these four stately trees were the
scapegoats for many ills. They were blamed for South Maui flooding. Remember the
mud floods which resulted in the brown kai for almost six months in Maalaea Bay just
four years ago? They were blamed for the poorly paved condition of South Kihei
Road as well as the dire need for continuous sidewalks. Ironically this one, this is
one of the few segments where there really is a sidewalk, and yet the only true issue
was some sidewalk installed over the tree roots was upset because root guards were
not installed beneath the sidewalk. Which was easily and inexpensively rectified by
the Department of Public Works paving the walking path with asphalt which can
expand and expand unlike concrete and several years later is still in place functioning
fine with only a single easily repaired crack while the trees remain performing all of
their stated advantages to the community. Mahalo, Director Goode.
I'll skip down a little bit so I don't go over the limit. Our point is this stand of grove
along with the other trees which were nominated separately but are not being
considered this time by age seemingly over 50 years old, location, size, and aesthetic
quality are certainly worthy of preservation. We are all aware that these trees like me
will not live forever; however, while they are still performing many valuable services
for the community--also like me, I hope--until they begin causing a major problem
let's ensure that they can live in peace.
Please vote yes. Mahalo.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any clarification needed from the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you.
MR. MORAN: Yes, sir. Now I'll just go on to my other item?
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
MR. MORAN Thank you. Okay, this is...the second item is the ordinance, a bill for an
ordinance relating to water conservation and control of water usage during water
shortage, Ordinance 85-14.
I will duck behind the podium when I say this, Mr. Victorino, but we're asking it to be
sent back to Committee. The proposed rates could be a huge impact to commercial
establishment if a shortage was in effect for an extended period of time. We're
asking it to be sent back to Committee for review as it could have a significant impact
on Kihei. We all think the idea of water conservation is valid but the ordinance needs
some refinements.
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The declaration of water shortage is proposed to be made by the Director and
approved by the Mayor. Since the Director works at the will of the Mayor this is a
policy without any check and balance, making it a poor public policy. The declaration
of the water shortage should be approved by an independent board such as the
County Council.
As the spokesperson for the Kihei Community Association, it's my responsibility to
offer information that is spoken by our community members and our community
residents and our membership. And why we got onto this issue, when I advised folks
that we were going to testify on the one item today, asked them to check the agenda
and see if there were other items. This was brought up by several people, and some
of the comments I got which again may make you guys cringe was like we never
heard of this before, you know, there were no meetings. And I just present to you not
that you don't know it but maybe a reminder, why is there this segment of the public
that has this perception? And that was the question I put out, why is KCA receiving
this kind of input requesting testimony at this point? And doing a bit of minimal
research you can see one of the challenges for Mr. Citizen or Ms. Citizen is you have
eight Committees and you have a Council, that's nine sets of meetings for an
individual to try and keep up with. Plus the numerous boards, commissions, the
Planning Commission, the Public Works Commission, Urban Resign [sic]. All the
meetings are in the day. And yes, we know they're on Akaku but that's also in the
day when a lot of folks can't make them.
We love Akaku but as one who tries to keep up even on the reruns, for the past
month--except I discovered it was back on today--their schedule of meetings was not
on their website. So for a citizen to try and find out, even look at a rerun of a
meeting, they can't find out when it's on. So you say well just watch Akaku all the
time, they throw up their hands and say why should I participate? So I think that's the
challenge.
I. know I'm way out of time. Thank you very much for the opportunity. And Merry
Christmas.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
MR. MORAN: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: The next person to testify is Jonathan Starr testifying on
Bill 86. Mr. Starr will be followed by Brett Fahnestock.
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MR. JONATHAN STARR [testifying on Bill No. 86 (2014)1:
Good morning, good Council members. My name is Jonathan Starr. I'd like to wish
everyone a happy holidays and a Merry Christmas, and a hope for a great 2015.
And I'm hoping that 2015 to a certain extent by your actions becomes the year that
Maui County really starts to move on building housing for our working people and all
different aspects of our community. So I want to thank you for your work. I'm here
regarding Bill 86, and basically in appreciation for the depth of process and the hard
work that's gone into this.
And one of the signs of good government is along with a lot of process and I do
believe there's, it's really easy to participate and know what's going on in the Council
and the Committees these days is the ability to evolve the process and to move
forward with making adjustments and changes. And I really hope that with the
Workforce Housing Policy this is a process that is ongoing. A lot of great thought and
discussion has occurred so far, and I hope you move it forward today. But I also
hope that it stays an item for thought and discussion and improvement, and I think
that we can go a huge step in the next year in helping us really become a place
where it's easy for people to find a home no matter what type of life, what type of
employment they have.
So thank you for your hard work. And I just leave here today feeling aloha and
appreciation for the good work of this body. Thank you and aloha.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification needed from the testifier? Thank you.
Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: The next person to testify is Brett Fahnestock testifying on
Bill 85. He will be followed by Barbara Halai Fernandez.

MR. BRETT FAHNESTOCK [testifying on Bill No. 85 (2014)1:
Good morning. My name is Brett Fahnestock. I'm from Kihei. I live at Southpointe
and I'm representing myself.
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And I want to thank you, Mr. Carroll, for putting the article in the Sunday Maui News
so that we all know, knew, found out that this was going to be discussed today. And I
wish all of you a Merry Christmas.
Council, I humbly ask that you please not pass Bill 85 to do with the water shortage.
I humbly ask you not only not pass it but you send it back to the Committee for
revisions. On April 7, 2013, in a Maui News article, Mr. David Taylor, the Director of
Water says, "Hotels and business users who use more than 15,000 gallons of water
per month will see their rates go from 4.80 per 1,000 gallons to 7.42 per 1,000
gallons." The problem with Bill 85, it's the same as the problem with that statement
made by the Director is that in addition to businesses and hotels seeing the rate
increase, there are thousands and thousands of us Maui residents who live in
condominiums association who will also see our rates go to 7.42 per 1,000 gallons.
If you were to believe the statement that only businesses and hotels were going to
see their rates increase, you would also have to believe that Harbor Lights is a hotel
or a business. You would also have to believe that lao Parkside, Kihei Villages,
Southpointe were hotels or businesses. I can assure you that they are not hotels or
businesses. I invite any of you to come to my condo at Southpointe where I live with
my wife and two kids. We have a 650 square foot condo, 2-bedroom, 1 bath. I can
assure you that it's not a hotel or a business. We've lived there since 2007.
On day one of a water shortage, our family like families at Harbor Lights, lao
Parkside, Kihei Villages and thousands of other families living in condos will see our
rates go to 7.42 per 1,000 gallons. I've said it to the Committee over and over and
it's just been completely ignored. Yes, that is correct, on day one of a water
shortage, our rates will go to 7.42 per 1,000 gallons. Why on day one will our rates
go so high? Because we have many units on one meter and we do not get a tiered
structure. Unlike living in a single-family home, we do not get the first 15,000 gallons
at a low rate.
See, at Southpointe we use about 9,000 gallons of water per month per unit. We are
already conservers of water. The average single-family home uses about 15,000
gallons of water per month, and we only use 9,000 gallons and yet we will pay $7.42
for all 9,000 gallons to bath our kids and wash our clothes.
Here's another interesting part of the bill. The way it's proposed, you're going to
leave the first 15,000 gallons for a single-family home at the same low rate with no
escalation under a water shortage. Why would you leave the first 15,000 gallons of a
single-family home unchanged during a shortage? I can only imagine that you would
do that because there are families that are going to bathe their kids and wash their
clothes.
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Bill 85, the water shortage should be sent back to Committee. The first order of
business for the Committee should be to see that the real impact of this, what will the
real impact be on the thousands of people living in condo associations like Harbor
Lights, lao Parkside? I would like to volunteer to help with such an analysis. I could
work with some of you in the Water Resources Committee to examine how many
people will be affected and what effect will that be. And the comparison of the 30
homes and the 30 condos as was done in the Water Resources Committee, it's not a
valid comparison.
And so again, I humbly ask that you please do not pass Bill 85, the water shortage
bill and take it back to Committee so that we can understand what the real effect will
be on these people living in these associations. Thank you so much.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification from the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: The next person to testify is Barbara Halai Fernandez
testifying on Committee Report 14-156. She will be followed by Warren Watanabe.

MS. BARBARA HALAI FERNANDEZ (testifying on Committee Report No. 14-156):
Vice Councilman Chair Carroll and Council members, aloha. Good morning. My
name is Barbara Halai Fernandez from Waiakoa. And, you know, I...thank you,
Councilman Victorino, for your words, because as I was sitting here watching the
process, if any of you went and you all should have, seen at lao Theatre Elf because
I feel like standing here and going I'm singing. I am so proud of what you guys have
done, so good job.
I'm sharing just my manao on agenda Item 14-156, especially Item No. 4 which is
Kihei's Monkey Pod trees. The four have been nominated as exceptional trees, and
you're going to hear and already have heard a lot of the professional stuff, but I'm
going into just some issues to share my manao.
We were raised that you don't speak up or speak out of line, and we know that, our
ohana from Molokai, from Lanai, and my ancestors from Makena. We just never
spoke up but we knew what was right all the time. Well as you know, times have
changed and we need to reach out because each one of us have seen it and we
need the strength to speak up whether we're the public or whether we're the Council
and the people that we depend on to run Maui.
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So I always joke and say I hope in my life that I could be like our trees. Now some of
you didn't, some of you haven't lived in Kihei that long as we have been here, but like
our trees sometimes we get chopped but we always come back, like a tree.
Sometimes we get neglected but we always come back. We forget how we're
treated disrespectfully but the tree always comes back. I only wish all my life I will be
remembered as we will as a tree that reaches out its limbs to embrace shade and not
be judgmental, and I think we've done a good job.
These four trees that I'm speaking on behalf of in Kihei as you know deserve the
respect of a living tree. On the last day of the world, I would want to plant a tree.
You probably all know that because W.S. Merwin says that and we adore him. So
let's speak up for our trees, the nominated ones, and then the ones I'm concerned
about.
So I'll say mahalo from me and the four trees especially on this agenda item. And
even if it's in private, don't forget you can do I'm singing. Mele Kalikimaka ame
Hauoli Makahiki Hou.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification needed for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
MS. FERNANDEZ: Mahalo.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: The next person to testify is Warren Watanabe testifying on
Bill 85. He will be followed by Janice Van Buren.

MR. WARREN WATANABE [testifying on Bill No. 85 (2014)1:
On behalf of our farmers and ranchers, I would like to wish everyone a Merry
Christmas and a Happy New Year. Vice-Chair Carroll, Members of the Council
County, my name is Warren Watanabe, Executive Director of the Maui County Farm
Bureau.
The Maui County Farm Bureau on behalf of its commercial farm and ranch families
and organizations supports Bill 85. This bill has had extensive deliberations in the
Water Resources Committee. MCFB appreciates the opportunity the Council has
provided to our farmers and ranchers to present their concerns, and that revisions
were made to address those concerns. We also express our gratitude to the Council
for your support of agriculture.
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We hope that the water supply reaches a degree where such measures are
required...are not required to be implemented. To this point, we continue to stress
the importance of developing new sources. Crops and livestock cannot do without
water. A strong and viable agriculture industry will not occur without an affordable
and reliable water system.
During the 2015 Legislature, funding for drought mitigation measures will be a Farm
Bureau priority. We hope you will support these measures as they come up for
hearings. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification needed from the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you
Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: The next person to testify is Janice Van Buren testifying on
Bill 85. She will be followed by Brian Puckett.

MS. JANICE VAN BUREN [testifying on Bill No. 85 (2014)1:
Good morning. I'm Janice Van Buren, and I'm a condo owner at Southpointe in
Kihei. I've been a condo owner for 23 years there, and this is the first time I've ever
testified for anything.
I'm concerned about Bill 85 because we at Southpointe have 346 units and we're all
on five water meters. That means that the first five water meters tick out the 15,000
gallons probably in the first couple of hours of every month and then we pay the
higher tier. I would like to see us have some allocation of the number of families
living and using water on each water meter. We use about 9,000 gallons, we really
try hard to conserve water. We don't even have a swimming pool.
We're your average workers. Lots of us can't afford homes, we can only afford
condos, and we have a really nice condo association. We're proud to be condo
owners, but we need to find an equitable way to balance the use and the charging of
water.
And I would also like to say that single-family units like homes, single homes that
have ohanas and they have one water meter are also not charged for that second
family drawing from the water. There ought to be a way like possibly on Oahu how
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they allocate water for families to charge us all equitably and to encourage us all to
conserve water.
And please, please take this bill back to Committee and find a way to balance it,
because we have so many, many people living in condos, families bathing their kids,
washing their clothes. We need to have it be an equitable solution for all people, not
just single-family homeowners. Thank you very much.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification needed from the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you.
Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: The next person to testify is Brian Puckett testifying on Bill 85.
He will be followed by Marilyn Colvin.

MR. BRIAN PUCKETT [testifying on Bill No. 85 (2014)1:
Good morning, Council. I'm also like Janice, I, and this is my first time testifying. I've
been a condo owner for a long time.
I also am echoing what she said and a lot of other people that stood for Bill 85. This
bill is, doesn't compare apples to apples as far as water usage. The multifamily
council home...multifamily condo homes like this, we have 346 units, they are
considered a single entity and billed as such for the water.
Like I say, like Janice was saying, we do only use 9,000 gallons per unit. We, once
we...and then we're only on five meters, so we actually do take up a lot of water just
in the first few hours or few days of our regular water usage, and we are a low-usage
place. I've taken many steps as the resident manager of Southpointe to make sure
that we conserve water, including water inspections and also low-flow heads and
everything like that on our sprinkler systems. We do conserve water, we're not using
thousands and thousands of gallons of water landscaping things.
I would...I just don't want to ask that please, you know, reconsider this bill and give
us a fair shake on how much water we use and things like that, not compare us to a
housing 'cause that's a single-family unit, we're multifamily units. We need to have,
be considered as such and give us maybe even a buffer of 9,000 gallons per unit
before the meters, before the special assessment takes place on these things during
a crisis.
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Recently a pipe was broken over in Kihei. From what I understand from this bill is if it
passes we would have been specially assessed for that. We would have been at the
higher water rate as they're asking us to conserve water right now because of a
mechanical breakdown. That's not really fair to everybody. Mechanical breakdowns
I know happen, as I stated I'm the resident manager of the condominium.
So yeah please, please reconsider this bill. And thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification needed from the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you
MR. PUCKETT: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: The next person to testify is Marilyn Colvin testifying on
Committee Report 14-156. She will be followed by Dennis Morihiro.

MS. MARILYN COLVIN (testifying on Committee Report No. 14-156):
Salutations, Mr. Chair and Members of the Council. I want to first thank you for
helping us--those of you who did--get to this point. We've been working on this
project for almost four years, and I know, I attempted to send everyone a document
that I prepared that is, lists all the background on these trees and the research that I
did in finding out the Code and different things of that nature. And I'll just show you
the trees, that's the best I can do today.
But these are four Monkey Pod trees that were nominated as a stand of trees which
is unusual, for a stand. Thank you, Don. And so that was back in February of 2011,
but here we are today standing before the whole Council and we're so very proud to
be here and have you listen to us with our wishes for these trees.
I wanted to address in this report that I made, there were some... in the subcommittee
that was chaired by Mr. Guzman, there were some concerns expressed about the
trees, and so I wanted to spend my time talking about those. The first concern was
that there was possible or somewhat, some minor--I think--sidewalk raising, and so
I've monitored the trees for the past four years and as have other locals and other
arborists. And for the past four years, those...or three years, the resurfacing of that
area, there's only been slight rising of one tree that's near a water...a fire plug. And
so we know that there are other ways to deal with that. And we can deal with that as
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we go along. But also I found that there have been no complaints to the County
about that one area of rising. The rest of 'em a-okay. So that was the first one.
The second one . . .(beep). . . Does that mean I have two minutes or...
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: You have a half minute until the minute mark -MS. COLVIN: Half minute?
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: --and then if you need you can have another minute to conclude.
MS. COLVIN: One more minute. Okay.
Also, I've not...the second one was widening of the road, and I found no evidence of
a document that says that's going to be done. I know it's been thought about but we
don't have anything in writing on that, so that doesn't seem fair to deny these trees
.(beep). . .given that there's nothing in writing.
Was that it?
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: You can have one more minute to conclude -MS. COLVIN: Yay, one more minute!
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: --if necessary.
MS. COLVIN: If...I'm going to make it.
If at any time after a tree is designated an exceptional tree it can be removed from
the list, and that was a concern. We in fact today on your agenda you're going to
deal with some of those, and it's not hard to do, it just has paperwork attached. And
you can remove it from the list. And of course if there was a problem with it then the
County can take it down or take them down. So that's not a problem. Even our laws
account for that and provide for that.
And finally, this is the one I really wanted to stress is it seems to be important now
that we remind ourselves that we have the power of seeing, selecting, and
overseeing trees. And that is, that duty is the duty of the Arborist Committee. And
the Code says, "The Arborist Committee is to establish a list of exceptional trees and
the County Council shall approve it."
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Four minutes.
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MS. COLVIN: And -VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Now your time is up.
MS. COLVIN: --so this group of volunteer individuals that are arborists, they have
recommended this and the law says the County Council shall approve it.
Thank you. Thank you very much.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification needed for, from the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you.
MS. COLVIN: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: The next person to testify is Dennis Morihiro testifying on
Committee Report 14-156. He will be followed by Arine Bulkley.

MR. DENNIS MORIHIRO (testifying on Committee Report No. 14-156):
Good morning. My name is Dennis Morihiro. I'm here about the approving of the
Monkey Pod quartet in Kihei, and been with the process from the incept of sign
carrying and the, on the Arborist Committee also and the approval.
I think--yes--we need to continue the nomination selection and continue by approving
these Monkey Pod trees. Now I've been a beekeeper for 30 years and I live totally
off the environment. These trees are in what is called a prevailing, in line with the
prevailing wind, and anything upwind or downwind affects each other. Not only do
the trees provide abatement to the wind for our environment which then saves our
habitat and our watershed, but it also affects the current in the ocean. And these row
of trees although miniscule in the amount of trees that are on South Kihei Road is the
last defense for the wind changing the current in the ocean which then changes a
nonrenewable habitat. Because there's no way we can change the habitat in the
ocean, we can't plant. We can't manage it any other way but by abating the wind.
So although these trees are just four, what it does by nominating it is that it, they
become identifiable as both the local and...to both the local and visiting public, and
they can, they are an asset to the township itself by being there. You know right now
we see advertisements of what Maui is to be or what Maui is, how lush and beautiful
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it is, but we only see it in the hotel advertisements. When you drive on the road we
see all these Monkey Pods dying. Why? Because of the wind. We don't see
anything as far as what it's supposed to be.
These trees represent what Maui is or was or should be, and I think that's why they
should be nominated. We should nominate all the trees really, but these trees is a
beginning. And I think that's where we should start. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification needed for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person to testify is Arine Bulkley testifying on Committee
Report 14-156. She'll be followed by Jim Smith.

MS. ARINE BULKLEY (testifying on Committee Report No. 14-156):
Good morning and aloha. Not to belabor it but I'm here to support the Monkey Pods
on South Kihei. I'm a ten-year resident in Kihei.
And to me there's just no question, you take one look at 'em and yes, they're
exceptional. I work for a little gift store and I have the occasion to talk to tourists all
day long and they don't know street names, they don't know condo names, but they
know the big trees. They're like, oh, is that after the big trees on South? Or is that
before or is that... oh yeah, I'm over there by the big trees. So they know and they
appreciate them.
It's not only our Monkey Pods, the four big trees, but it's all of our trees. I've heard
some of the tourists talk about our trees as bushes on sticks. They're like why are all
the trees here in Maui look like bushes on sticks? So we need to not only pass this,
an exceptional tree, but to have that as a step forward in taking care of our trees on
Maui. I mean they're kind of ugly, and we need to look to the future.
You heard all the benefits of trees, and so please, please pass this exceptional trees
for the four Monkey Pods. And please do everything you can to protect our trees in
the future. Thank you very much. Aloha.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any clarification from the testifier? Excuse...could
you come back to the podium?
MS. BULKLEY: Sorry.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Can we get the testifier's name, please?
MS. BULKLEY: How do you guys do this all the time talking in front of people.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Can we get the testifier's name, please?
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Could you please repeat your name.
MS. BULKLEY: My name is Arine Bulkley.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
MS. BULKLEY: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: The next person to testify is Jim Smith testifying on Bills 84
and 85, and Committee Reports 14-154, 14-165, and 14-166. Mr. Smith will be
followed by Cynthia Willard.

MR. JIM SMITH (testifying on Bill Nos. 84 (2014), 85 (2014), and Committee Report
Nos. 14-154, 14-165, and 14-166.):
Aloha. Aloha, Vice-Chair Carroll. Mele Kalikimaka. Happy Hanukkah as well.
This is...well I'm going to testify on several items and I've identified them on my list,
because this is a political place and it's our place, and these are big things,
connected. They're not something that we can...thank you for the...it's not
something we can separate and walk away from. So I present these testimonies in
that idea that these are all connected.
And if you'll look at the first Bill 83, okay, which is removing from our Code the word
"general". All right. Now our Charter has the word "general" in it. All right. In 1991
the General Plan was changed. The word "principle" was removed and the word
"theme" was put in, and there's a theme going on through these items that is the use
of words. And I would say the use of the word "principle" needs to be put back into

Regular Meeting of the Council of the County of Maui
December 19, 2014
Page 19

our process. All right. And in this General Plan, in our County Code general is the
principle, so the contrived confusion about having to have a public hearing on Lanai
and Molokai because of a non-decennial change fails to understand the principle.
The principle is general like the ten commandments, specific like our laws. Okay.
You change your laws, you don't change the ten commandments. We have the
General Plan, you don't change it.
A wave of visionaries came to Maui in the late '70s and early '80s, all of them young
professionals, degrees, planners, architects, and lawyers, also political activists. And
when you combine the two, words don't matter because the ideology they brought
from California was focused on results.
Reaganism, the farthest kind of
Republicanism. Close to parasite but I wouldn't go that far.
But this change is significant because it's the operative language that connects to our
Charter the Code. So if you take that out, where you gonna go? A community-wide
plan? Huh? General, specific, local community, huh? County of Maui. You break
that and you break the system, and that is the object is to break the system which is
so inefficient. I have to vote. You have to run for office.
Mahalo. I'd ask you to table that bill please.
The second bill that I would like to testify on is Bill No. 85. And it's interesting
because the word "encourage" is used by the Planning Director, and he means deter.
It's not encourage, it's deter. The more pain, the less water you use, but let's just call
it encourage. And this Committee at Page 3 bought into that and said, the
consumers who save are gonna be hurt by those who use, they gotta be punished,
those who use. Well, it's not about consumers, it's about beneficiaries. We are
beneficiaries, we're not consumers. So it needs to be thought about. It needs to go
to policy. It needs...do you know what the water source development fee is for a
three-quarter meter? Huh? How many thousands and thousands of dollars you want
to put on this poor person? Paying only deters the poor man, the family, it doesn't
deter the corporation, they don't have blood in their system.
So when you go forward with this, you're ignoring that because you're feeling good
because you've changed principle to theme which is the General Plan.
Entertainment. Vision of an individual, nothing to do with us, with our feet on the
ground who suffer and deal and don't get into these kinds of arguments at a bar
because you get hurt. We come here, this is our place. This is our cultural center
here. Because words matter and they don't matter to this Mayor. Rehabilitate
means demolish? Principle means theme? Huh? And encourage? Huh? This is
where you are letting it go if you don't hold these people to the principle, that you
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oversee them, you don't entertain them. You don't join them in a ukulele fest, you
protect our interests, I think. Political activists came here in the late '70s. My manao.
Please refer this back to Committee. If you cannot refer it back to Committee make it
effective six months from today and then do the work that's supposed to be done as
our representatives, as our overseers. Thank you very much. Any questions? If
when I finish there are any questions, just interrupt me.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
MR. SMITH: All right. That was two of the bills. This is, the next item I'm going to testify
on...geeze, this is kind of difficult. I could choose. I'm going to choose the Budget
Committee 14...what number do I have listed there on my sheet, 154? All right.
There are two items on that. One is a resolution that has to be approved and the
other is an ordinance or bill that has to be approved, and I've put down each one to
testify on. All right.
And the first one is the resolution. All right. And this is why we're in such trouble, I
believe. All right. So this is a resolution that finds basically that the Council has the
authority, okay to accept gifts or donations. All right. And the Corporation Counsel
says this is a donation so you can accept it. But if you read the SMA permit
conditions it says that they are responsible to pay a fee. They are responsible to
contribute a traffic impact fee. Now, we are told that a donation and fee are the same
thing by this resolution, and I think you need to change that resolution.
Now we know that fees are set up in our budget and we know our Charter says you
set the fees and we know that this donation was set by Mr. Goode and a
representative for Maui Timeshare or official capacity type stuff. So we know that but
we know they're not the Council. Okay. So we know that's illegal to do that, and we
know that you don't have a fee structure 'cause you said so. And if you look in the
budget you can see fee structures for water source development, et cetera, et cetera.
The poor guy who's the vice president for Maui Timeshare is embarrassed. He tells
you, oh you know what, we'll do an escrow, we'll do anything 'cause we want to get
our people in there. We'll do any of that stuff, escrow. Okay. He's telling you this is
not a donation, this is a payment. Okay.
And it goes on to say that you--all right--you have to approve this resolution as true.
And if you do that you've missed some significant points. And I'd ask you not to, I
ask you to refer it, refer it to Policy if nothing else. Budget, fine. But please this is not
something you should put a Merry Christmas present to Mr. Goode and
Mr. Haberman who's the vice president of Maui Timeshare. Thank you very much on
that item.
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That item was the resolution that justifies the adoption, okay, of an ordinance. The
ordinance changes our budget. All right. And it takes $700,000 that Mr. Goode
really, really wants to spend but it's not his. It's not the County's, it's nobody's. Okay.
So they want you to facilitate the spending by overlooking the falsehood in the
resolutions and the ambitious zeal to get this thing done before the end of the year.
Twenty-first is when it came up, first reading is December 2nd, now it's December,
they want this money now. Okay.
But they don't have the fee in the budget so they're going to make it a donation.
Well, we gotta value words in this Chamber, nowhere else, and you gotta show it by
your example. And when it's clear like this that a donation is not a fee and they're
only required to contribute fees, you gotta say take it back, my friend, 'cause it's just
unprincipled. Go back to theme if you want to do this. Be a theme guy. This
Chamber is principle no matter that you removed the word from our General Plan in
1991 by these visionary zealots who now have nothing but words to play with and no
principle. And that's who we are dealing with. And let's not let that happen.
This ordinance--all right--is unlawful if you accept this donation as a fee. Okay. You
can't accept it any other way because it says you're getting a donation, so you don't
accept it. I think that would be obvious. You put it back to Committee, you make
your structure, it could be like water source develop, and you go forward, you don't
need to do that now for the reason you do, and that's why I'm looking forward to a
new Chair. Perhaps, perhaps principle will then return and theme and feeling good,
because that's what replaces principle is feeling good. Okay. So now we're in the
feel-good mode, the feel-good model of government that exists only as long as you're
elected, and after that, do what you want. But this is the model embraced in '91.
This is the model adopted in our new planning process. This is the model you're
asked to embrace when you've been called names, you've been abused. Hunker
down, boys, and do it, because you ain't got no muscle. Well, you do have muscle,
and you got the muscle that happens to be all of us.
Please take that ordinance and put it where the sun don't shine. Thank you very
much.
Next, the final one that I'd like to testify is again related to--for lack of a better
word--principle, and that is PIA-165 I believe, and 166. All right. And that is the
recommendation of filing a communication from Mr. White involving the hiring of
special counsel. And also I believe it involves the filing of another communication
asking for the hiring of special counsel, okay, for representing the individuals that
occupy the seats referenced. The important thing is we have a resolution approved,
13-83, and that says your duty, okay, is to protect, to oversee. You can't avoid that.
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That's your duty. As elected you're doing, and you're doing it with this investigation.
And the question I have regarding 166 is whether or not there was a written request
for counsel filed with this Council? Okay. And there's nothing in the Committee
Report that says anything about that. And that creates a mystery. Was there any
written request to appoint a counsel by the Members? Because if there were or was
then those people have to forgive the request, not this Council, not the Mayor.
Because they're looking for representation in which they think they're going to be
individually liable or criminally liable, so they submit this letter. Now if there was no
letter submitted by each one fearing for their economic and...lives, then it is an
obstruction. Okay. Then the Mayor is obstructing the Council in the exercise of its
function in its oversight if there was none. Okay. What that means is there is no
contemplation of an investigation. Okay. That means that while you're saying you're
filing these separate items, while you're saying that, you really mean you're nullifying
the Resolution 13-83 'cause you're tired. But you know that resolution is good, okay,
and you need legal counsel to say whether or not these things happen. And you
should hire that legal counsel. And I'm saying, this testimony is related to the filing of
the request for counsel for that.
My next participation will be with regard to the filing of the request for special counsel
which is 165, I believe or something like that. But please, if they didn't file a request
it's obstruction, it needs to be looked at, okay, unless you don't care. Okay. It needs
to be filed because it's just the Mayor saying I'm going to make it so miserable for
you, you don't get it. All right. You're not going to do it, it's gonna be I'll tie you in
knots for a year, five years, and you'll end up walking talking to yourself, because
you're not going to do your investigation, you're not going to do your due diligence,
you're just going to be so wounded and shell shocked when I get through with you,
we got no problems. Well there is problems, so I would ask you not to file until you
find out whether or not there is a written request. And if there is recommit it 'cause
the Mayor can't take it away nor can the Chair of the Policy Committee take... nor can
the Committee take it away because that's an individual request to you regarding
counsel. And if you interfere with that then you're, caused problems.
Now the letter, the first one which is this wonderful letter that explains what the
money is, $20,000. Well I don't think you can dispute we need independent counsel,
because on the agenda today is a request for a Charter amendment to allow the
Council to hire independent counsel, and this is the example is the Mayor demolishes
the building when it's written in the budget, rehabilitate. Okay. That's the war, words,
principle, theme. That's the war you are engaged in, not me, because you represent
the body politic. And if you decide you want to have a different structure where the
Mayor sits next to you, okay, and you guys do this and you hire a manager well,
that's what they do in Ferguson. That's what they do in Ferguson. We don't want
what they do in Ferguson here, we want a Council that knows that the words matter
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today, yesterday, 15 years forward. And that's what you're losing is this battle. And
you gotta get the game going back. Please recommit. The investigation hasn't even
started and you're saying the auditor will do it. Ha. That's nothing, audit is nothing,
it's the legal question regarding separation of power and duty and the loss of your
protection as my representative. So I hope you'll be strong.
And this new year with you moving forward great hope, great hope, 'cause only you
have suffered like no other Council has suffered. And I'm thinking maybe you've had
enough. Thank you very much.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any clarification needed from the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you.
MR. SMITH: Aloha.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: The next person to testify is Cynthia Willard testifying on
Bill 85. She will be followed by Sue Kamalo.

MS. CYNTHIA WILLARD [testifying on Bill No. 85 (2014)1:
Hi, I'm Cynthia Willard. I'm chair...
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Can pull down the microphone some, and identify yourself,
please.
MS. WILLARD: Can you hear me better? Cynthia Willard, chair president for Harbor Lights.
I'm here to talk about Bill 85.
Harbor Lights has 352 units. We operate on two water meters. We're very
concerned about the bill. Operating on two water meters of course, 15,000 gallons
we would be through in about 2 hours if that bill passed. About 90 percent of our
occupancy is low income and that...we have mainly senior citizens, and they, you
know, they provide...their income is through Social Security and the rest is manual
labor. We don't...and we're doing the best we can there. And this water bill would
pretty much take us down. So we ask that you do consider us on this. This would
not...we would not be able to make it with this type of hit to our business. And we
don't do nightly rentals, we don't do weekly rentals, this is where we live and this
would hurt us.
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I have been the chair president for three weeks and so I know very little, but I do
know that the people there work hard. And we are working hard to make Harbor
Lights a clean, safe place to live. And this would take us the opposite direction
because we would have to spend so much of our maintenance fees towards water
bills and take away from the security and the safety for our people.
So I ask that you do consider this and relook at what it would do to our people.
Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any clarification needed from the testifier?
Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair, I'd just like to clarify that this bill doesn't address rates,
and it's just addressing the water shortage. So all the testimony, I appreciate all the
testimony and the passion, but I think it does need to be pointed out that we're not
addressing the rates today. That needs to be done in the Budget Committee in a
subsequent meeting next year. So that's really where we can make a difference
based on the concerns of the testifiers that we're hearing from this morning. Thank
you, sir.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. And I assume that'll come up when we hear the bill.
Thank you. Any further clarification? None, thank you very much.
Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: The next person to testify is Sue Kamalo testifying on Bill 85.
She will be followed by Jean Pezzoli.

MS. SUE KAMALO [testifying on Bill No. 85 (2014)1:
Hi. I too looked...my name is Sue Kamalo. I'm the general manager for Harbor
Lights. I just started the job on the 9th so I'm still learning too.
And I did look through Bill 85 and I didn't see anything about rates. But I was
encouraged by my Councilman to come and speak so that you guys could look at the
bill very carefully and consider that...I don't think the multifamily dwellings were
considered too much when you guys did the bill. Harbor Lights is almost the last
affordable place to live, and for any other reason the water bill got higher for us--we
as a community are already paying $104,000 per billing cycle--it would force our
We are currently paying the highest
maintenance payments to increase.
maintenance payments on the island about which is 585 for a two-bedroom unit.
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We recently sub-metered our electricity because we are concerned about efficiency
of our utilities, and it caused our maintenance payment to drop by $80. We've also
taken the advantage of the County Water. Department and put on the water-saving
heads on all of our showers. We're committed. We have our own irrigation well. But
I just wanted to let you folks know that we have 1,200 people living in those units.
And I'm not going to go on about the water increase because it's not addressed like
he said.
Please send it back to Committee. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any clarification needed from the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you.
Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: The next person to testify is Jean Pezzoli testifying on
Committee Report 14-156. She will be followed by Sandy Baz.

MS. JEAN PEZZOLI (testifying on Committee Report No. 14-156):
Good morning. My name is Jean Pezzoli. I'm here in support of 14-156 for the
Monkey Pod trees. I am a member of the County Arborist Committee, although today
I speak as an individual, a 30-year resident of Kihei, and I'm also a professor at the
University of Hawaii Maui College.
The Monkey Pod trees in my estimation and when it came before the Arborist
Committee, we brought up the historical nature of these trees. It was 1993 or '94 I
believe and at that time the County was going to take down the trees in order to
widen the road. There was huge headlines about it, especially in the Kihei Times.
And the Kihei community stood up in protest because they didn't want the trees
removed. It blessed my heart to hear this kind of support for trees; however, I was
surprised to see this kind of support coming from the people. The decision was
made to put off any decision at that point in time.
However, the support for the trees isn't just because they're beautiful--which they
are--but also because tree-lined streets, research has shown, has proven when you
line the streets with trees, people slow down. So trees save lives. Now I know you
may not believe this but if you just pick up the newspaper and see what's happened,
Waianae, Nanakuli, about every three or four months, somebody who's a pedestrian
gets killed because of speeding.
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Not only do trees save lives but also they reduce temperatures. We've talked about
this. Often people don't realize it isn't just the lower temperature in the shade but
beyond the shade in the sun, that ambient temperature is reduced considerably when
you have trees. And we know global warming is on our back door. And we need to
take a look at this. Trees reduce carbon dioxide, chew 'em right up, and what do
they put out instead but through photosynthesis? Oxygen. The same oxygen that
you and I need to breathe. Every breath we take comes from a plant someplace
producing oxygen.
So I ask you to take, to give consideration to our trees along South Kihei Road. We
need them. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification needed from the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you.
Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: The next person to testify is Sandy Baz testifying on County
Communication 14-303. Mr. Baz will be followed by Jeff Marsh.

MR. SANDY BAZ (testifying on County Communication No. 14-303):
Aloha, Chair, Members. My name is Sandy Baz. I'm the Budget Director for the
County of Maui.
Providing to you this morning some further information which should have been
handed out to you this morning, and it's this page here if you want to look for that.
Basically during our budget discussion on Tuesday, this past Tuesday, one of the
items discussed was the level of Debt Service that we'd be paying for our new facility
at the service center and the rent savings that we would be providing for moving out
of the rental spaces.
So Page No. 1, if you can see there you'll see the lines cross of the Debt Service of
about $2 million in about year ten. So from year ten and on we'll be actually making
money. This is based on a 3 percent rate increase of the rents, so the rents that we
pay, average of 3 percent rate increase. Also the Debt Service is based on about a 3
percent bond which is conservative so.
Page No. 2 is the Debt Service coverage from the Kalana 0 Maui Phase I building,
and you can see that's in year 11 that we have the rent being paid higher than the
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Debt Service. Page 3 is the same item but with a more conservative rent increase of
2 percent, and you can see that the Debt Service for the new center would be
covered by the rent in year 14. And for Kalana 0 Maui Phase I at a 3 percent would
be 11. Looks like they doubled the pages there, I apologize for that. We'll get the
exact number to you.
Page 5 is the discussion of what is going to be moving out of this building and into
Kalana 0 Maui Phase I and Kalana Pukui, and so you can see the exact square
footages that match up and who's going to be moving where.
And then Page 6 is again the proposed relocations that we passed out on Tuesday
with some minor revisions that we found. One of the items got duplicated so you can
see some minor revisions there.
But this is for your information in discussion of County Communication 14-303, and
I'll be here to answer any questions either now or at the end of the meeting.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification needed from the testifier? Hearing none, thank
you.
MR. BAZ: Okay, thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: The next person to testify is Jeff Marsh testifying on
Bill No. 85. Mr. Marsh will be followed by Courtney Shuster.

MR. JEFF MARSH [testifying on Bill No. 85 (2014)1:
Good morning. My name's Jeff Marsh. I'm here testifying on behalf of the Palms at
Wailea and also for myself.
In review of the Water Shortage Bill there are a couple of glaring questions that come
to mind. And one is why has the Council taken the opportunity to do and craft
something of such dire consequence for this community and not done anything
substantive in my estimation? I have a list of changes I would recommend because I
don't want to spend my time in diatribe, I simply want to provide some ideas.
First and foremost, I think it's important to develop a detailed framework for
addressing water shortages in Maui County based on detailed methodology,
determining levels, flow rates, assessments for aquifers, surface water, reservoirs,
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and recycled water outputs as compared to historical data for each of the four water
districts. This needs to be part of the bill.
We also need to define what constitutes a water shortage specific to specific data.
We need to establish measurable thresholds and trigger points as to when we
actually get to the point of a shortage. We need to include a definition of drought and
how it relates to shortage considerations simply because we know that with the
current climatological information we have before us we're going to see greater
extremes in weather. And I think it's important to realize that droughts don't occur
this month, droughts may have actually started two years ago. And so it's important
to get that framework in place so we can start to be proactive in our water usage
response.
I also think that it's important to define the specific meteorological trends under which
a drought could be declared. Again, definitions based on facts. You do your best to
get to that point, you put it down, you codify it, and you move forward based on the
assumptions based on the data that you have.
I also think it's important to create and publish water shortage response trigger level
tables so we know where our usage levels are when they start to become critical, and
we can get reports on this from the Water Department that says, you know, we're at
85 percent of where we need to be two months down the road. We need to start
doing something now. I think that's important. And I think it needs to be broken out
for each water resource for each district. Upcountry tends to come in with greater
numbers of water shortages than the rest of us, and they're in a very vulnerable
position. And so I think it behooves us with the agricultural community there to really
pay attention ahead of time and make the shortage announcements earlier so we
can start conserving to get there.
I also provided a Boulder County water shortage and drought plan to the Council. It's
the best thing I could come up with in my research. I was trying desperately to find
something that would have some substance. So I hope you had an opportunity to
review it. And that's my recommendation, put some substance behind it and move
forward. Thank you for your consideration.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification needed from the testifier? Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you. I did actually have an opportunity to review the
Boulder rules and regulations.
Those are almost like comparable to our
Administrative Rules, but I would have liked to have seen the ordinance itself. Ours
is, our ordinance is a little bit more general as you can, as you testified to. But yeah,
I also agree that there should be some kind of methodology attached to it. But it
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appears that our ordinance would allow it to occur through the Administrative Rules.
So maybe it's something that we need to look at further.
MR. MARSH: Well I appreciate your time in taking a look at that. I guess my fear is that it
would result in too much stick and not enough carrot, and I'm really hopeful that if we
are actually able to publish a list of targets out to the community, people could say
wow, I gotta look at curtailing 8 percent over the next month. Not now but the
following month, and they can start to shift into that mindset. Because we're all here
and we all rise and fall on our water supplies. So thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair, I also notice that during the...maybe that's during
discussion. But during the... in Boulder they've done four volumes of drought study
and that's what it's based off of, their ordinance is based off of four volumes of the
drought study. So their methodology is very factual and when they trigger the
drought declaration. So and that's what possibly may be missing in our ordinance is
the studies. Thank you.
MR. MARSH: Yeah. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Further clarification needed from the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you.
Clerk.
MR. MARSH: Happy holidays, everyone. Thank you very much.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: The next person to testify is Courtney Shuster testifying on
Committee Report 14-156. She will be followed by Ernest Rezents.

MS. COURTNEY SHUSTER (testifying on Committee Report No. 14-156):
Good morning. I'm here with my kids, A. Shuster and B. Shuster to support the
community and its nomination of the trees in Kihei for exceptional tree status.
I support the nomination because these trees and all they provide, wind abatement,
shade, wildlife refuge, landscape aesthetic enhancement. This is what makes other
places on Maui like Wailea, Makena, and even Wailuku places tourists and locals
alike want to visit and live. As for issues pertaining to the trees affecting the roadway
in the future, I feel that since the community came forward with this nomination,
saving these trees is of greater importance to the community than whatever problems
that could arise. Thank you.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any clarification needed from the testifier? Hearing
none, thank you.
Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: The next person to testify is Ernest Rezents testifying on
Committee Report 14-156. He will be followed by Gene Zarro.

MR. ERNEST REZENTS (testifying on County Communication No. 14-156):
Good morning. My name is Ernie Rezents. I want to congratulate you on your
reelections. I speak on behalf of trees.
Now global warming is facing us and every day you'll hear about global warming and
the carbon dioxide that is being emitted by the burning of fossil fuels warming up the
earth. Our oceans have increased in temperature. The acidity because of the
carbon dioxide in the oceans have increased and therefore shellfish for instance are
not able to reproduce.
Now these trees are just 4 trees, next door, 10 trees, altogether 14 trees. Now taking
off one tree, two trees, three trees, four trees seem minor to us but every tree counts
because elsewhere they have the same attitude that one tree, two trees, or whatever
doesn't make a darn bit of difference. But every year thousands of acres of trees in
the forests are removed for agriculture purposes. This is for growing grass to raise
beef for hamburger for instance or to grow or raise palm oil trees for palm oil. But
people feel nothing about removing trees.
Now if you look at South Kihei Road this stand of 4 trees plus 10 making 14 is the
only real shade trees you'll find on South Kihei until you get to Wailea. Now why do
you think the Wailea property is so valuable? Because they have trees.
If take away these trees you will worsen the environment of South Kihei Road. It's
only four trees. Now I did... I was a consulting arborist on this project and these trees
are very important to the community. Protecting them will protect the trees and
guarantee somewhat their survival. But every tree counts and this is the time to take
action. You have to put money where your mouth is.
Now I know some of you feel that these are not exceptional because they're kind of
small, but that designation will protect the trees, and I think you'll be doing a justice to
yourself and to the generations to come. These trees make a difference, and you
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can make a stand by saying keep them and protect them by declaring them to be
exceptional.
Now the sidewalks I know they have standards. Engineers are so reluctant to
change standards. Now they want to go six feet, four feet, three feet, so forth. There
are things that can be done to adjust the environment to save the trees. I proposed
that the fire hydrant be moved further south, oh we can't do that. Or reducing the
sidewalk, oh we can't do that. Well things can be done and the Council, you the
members here can insist that these trees be saved and then adjust the sidewalk.
Do you know that elsewhere they're using things like rubber sidewalks where you can
take it up every year or so and shave down the roots? The Monkey Pods are very
forgiving. Or they say put Styrofoam and then you put rebar-enforced sidewalk
above that, and if you see some raising of the sidewalk, well move it up, shave the
roots, put it back again. So you can adjust and these things are being done on the
mainland. But engineers do not like to adjust, they want to go straight and certain
dimensions and that's it. So you have the power.
Thank you very much for your time. And I've exceeded my time limit, but it's been a
long time and I think you're saying to save the trees and make them exceptional will
declare you to be quite environmentally friendly. Congratulations. Thank you. Bye
now.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification needed for the, from the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you.
Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person to testify is Gene Zarro testifying on County
Communication 14-311. Mr. Zarro will be followed by Tom Blackburn-Rodriguez.

MR. GENE ZARRO (testifying on County Communication No. 14-311):
Good morning, Council. Happy holidays to all of you. My name is Gene Zarro and
I'm testifying today as the CEO of the South Maui Learning Ohana. South Maui
Learning Ohana is the founding nonprofit of Kihei Charter School. They are also a
property owner up at the MRTP, so we are very much in support of this
communication and this project moving forward.
We are, South Maui Learning Ohana is the recipient of $17.7 million worth of
financing from the USDA to build a permanent home up at the Maui Research and
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Tech Park for the Kihei Charter School and other uses. And the new criteria is very
important to developing the building for the 21st Century. We need all of those things
to make the building we are building sustainable, and sustainable in the sense of its
affordability. Also in the way we would build this building we would need some of that
criteria, for instance like lesser setbacks so that we could create the proper building
that would house students up there at the Maui Research and Tech Park.
So I'm asking you to try and expedite this process in a positive way and get it going.
We are already in the design stage. Nishikawa Architects received the bid for
designing this building, and we hope to put an RFP out soon, probably at the
beginning of the year for the contractor in the design assist mode. And so as a
property owner up at the Research and Tech Park and as someone who cares
deeply about the educational facilities for South Maui, someone has to get it done,
we're getting it done, and we need you to help us. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification needed from the testifier? Hearing none, thank
you.
Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person to testify is Tom Blackburn-Rodriguez testifying
on Bill 86. He will be followed by Rosemary Robbins.

MR. TOM BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ [testifying on Bill No. 86 (2014)]:
Aloha. Thank you, Chair, Members of the Council. I'll be testifying on the Residential
Workforce Housing Bill. My name is Tom Blackburn-Rodriguez and I'm the executive
consultant for Go Maui which has been involved in this process for some time.
Before I do that, if I might ask the Chair, I'd just like to say speaking as an individual I
would like to endorse the leadership of Mike Moran and the Kihei Community
Association and their position on the trees in Kihei. As a Kihei resident I thank them
for their leadership.
The Residential Workforce Housing Bill has come before you for second and final
reading. It's been the subject of much discussion and debate. Many valuable
expressions of support, concern have been made. But I would like to emphasize that
now is the time for action. We can review this legislation as community members, as
Members of the Council at the appropriate time within two years to see if there are
any changes that need to be made. Particularly we can begin some of those
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discussions early on about potential revisions to encourage incentives for additional
development of affordable housing.
But the work of the Chair, Councilmember Crivello as well as the task force and all
the Members of this Council moving forward on affordable housing, you have always
recognized that this is a process, it is something that is constant. Your passage
many years ago of a Charter Amendment to set aside two percent of real property tax
revenues has generated tens of millions of dollars for affordable housing. And many
projects initiated will be coming online in the next year or two. As well as the support
you have for rental assistance with nonprofits, and also the rental assistance program
of the Federal government. So it is a very, very complex and multifaceted approach.
This Council has been extraordinary in its dedication to this issue, and I would like to
wish you all happy holidays. Merry Christmas. Thank you for all of your hard work.
And I urge passage of this legislation. And let's continue the fight for affordable
housing so working families don't have to leave to the mainland and we see the
destruction and break up of families. Aloha.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any clarification needed from the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you.
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: The next person to testify is Rosemary Robbins testifying on
Committee Report 14-167 and County Communication 14-313. Ms. Robbins will be
followed by Jordan Hart. Mr. Hart is the last individual who has signed up to testify in
the Council Chamber.
(Councilmember White was excused from the meeting at 10:37 a.m.)

MS. ROSEMARY ROBBINS (testifying on Committee Report No. 14-167 and County
Communication No. 14-313):
Good morning, everybody. Rosemary Robbins, concerned citizen.
Item 14-167, Page 7 on today's agenda is 1 of 5 items on today's agenda that
operate with executive meetings, meaning that part of the deliberation that goes on is
closed to the public. So even though some of us are here during that, we're locked
out. I have confidence that the people who are serving on the Council can get that
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job done. We need to keep in mind the focus that if we do it right the first time we
won't have to be revisiting and then revisiting the revisit, and then revisiting the revisit
of the visiting, that has happened on this item.
This has to do with a Federal decision that showed Maui on the bad end of stuff. The
Bill is Civil 12-00198 SOM BMK, and that's the identification that we have as having
disavowed the wisdom and the necessity health-wise for what we've done in
deteriorating the clean air and the clean water as put forth by the Federal legislation
from 1972. So it's been around long enough for all of us to have caught onto that.
And this one is the hiring of outside counsel in order to represent our County of Maui.
In terms of financially, in terms of those services starting at a quarter of a million
dollars, and those three words ahead of that numeric are "not to exceed" a quarter of
a million. Since then it has come back to add up to half a million plus. Then add up
again to a higher number, and now this is a million, two-hundred fifty thousand
dollars. In each case the preceding step not to have exceeded those numbers.
Something's terribly wrong with that system.
(Councilmember White returned to the meeting at 10:39 a.m.)
MS. ROBBINS: So I would ask us to first of all do it right to begin with. That stands for all of
us in our own behavior in life, and for the Council who needs to deal with this and not
keep having us have to pay for expensive litigation because we didn't do it right to
begin with. Thank you.
The second item that I'd like to address this morning is a resolution that was put
forth--thank you very much--by the Chairman of this meeting today, and it talks
about...I'm going to read this to you from the resolution. Currently, this is since 1983,
in the Council Charter, it "provides that the Corporation Counsel shall be the chief
legal advisor and legal representative of the County, the Council, the Mayor, all
departments, all boards, all commissions, and all officers and employees in matters
relating to their official duties". It's a whale of a lot of responsibilities to put on one
person.
And so this resolution is saying whereas, as the chief legal advisor of both the
Council and the Mayor, the Council and the Mayor should be equally authorized to
determine whether their respective interests are being adequately represented by the
Corporation Counsel and to initiate removal of the Corporation Counsel at their
discretion. So we're going from a single person having the power to do all of that to
having that continue to be an opportunity for him or her, but also the County Council,
folks who have been elected by the citizenry at large. So I certainly hope that that's
going to go through. There has not been a very happy acceptance of citizen
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recommendations as we know from one of the items that was on the agenda in this
past month's election here.
So keeping the good of the older timeframes and being appreciative of the newer
opportunities that are being recognized as opportunities and needs that we move
ahead with that. So thank you very much for having proposed that.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any clarification needed from the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you.
MS. ROBBINS: You're welcome.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Clerk.
MS. ROBBINS: Mazel tov. Merry Christmas, everybody.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: The next person to testify is Jordan Hart testifying on
Committee Report 14-156. Mr. Hart is the last individual who has signed up to testify
in the Council Chamber.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: If anyone wishes to testify after this, please go to the desk and
sign up. Thank you.
Sir.

MR. JORDAN HART (testifying on County Communication No. 14-156):
Good morning, Chair and Members. My name is Jordan Hart. I was the chair of the
County Arborist Committee at the time that many of these exceptional trees were
nominated, and so I'm not really going to speak about them specifically as much as
the process.
According to the website, Exceptional Trees of Hawaii, there are approximately 1,000
trees Statewide that are exceptional on 259 sites. There are 156 sites on Oahu and
there's 48 sites on Maui. Now this won't reflect these changes today but in
conversations about this process I've heard that there's kind of been concern about
how exceptional various trees are. And so, you know, the point of reading that
information is to explain that the language is supposed to be inclusive. If you look at
the enabling legislation on the State level and the County level it's inclusive to add
more trees, and I think that Oahu is doing that and we're not doing it as much as we
should be.
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The other thing I heard concern about was hazards and how exceptional trees are
dealt with if they're hazardous. There's in the County Code existing 12.24A.090
deals with hazardous trees, and so the County has the opportunity to act. And it
doesn't differentiate between exceptional and non-exceptional.
Another item was if exceptional trees are going to conflict with proposed projects.
Now there is the mechanism to remove trees from the exceptional tree list, and I think
that the Administration has the ability to make them take action to remove trees from
this list. And if the project is good then the Council will consider these things, the
community will speak, and a decision can be made. So I don't think that adding trees
to this list is any sort of prohibition of future important projects for the County.
And then the final thing that I wanted to recap is something that Irene said, Arine said
earlier in regards to maintenance. I do also agree that maintenance of publically
owned trees is not to the par that it should be, and I don't think this is a cost issue. I
just think that this is a supervision and accountability issue. There's standards for
tree care, and the people who are getting these contracts are supposed to be
certified and performing their work to these standards. And so I really don't think this
is any sort of additional cost on the part of the County. But if it's enforced I think that
we will see major benefits for the enjoyment of the residents in our County parks and,
you know, roadways, but also for our visitor industry which is a major component of
our economy.
So that kind of concludes my input, and I just thank you for considering these trees.
And I encourage you to approve them.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any clarification needed from the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you.
MR. HART: Thanks.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chair, there are no further individuals signed up to testify
in the Council Chamber. If there are any additional individuals in the Council
Chamber or at the District Offices who would like to offer testimony, please identify
yourself to the appropriate staff and proceed to the testimony lectern or District Office
phone at this time.
Hana Office, are there any additional testifiers?
MS. LONO: The Hana Office has no one waiting to testify.
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DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Thank you. Lanai Office, are there any additional testifiers?
MS. FERNANDEZ: The Lanai Office has no one waiting to testify.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Thank you. Molokai Office, are there any additional testifiers?
MS. ALCON: There's no one here on Molokai waiting to testify.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Thank you. Mr. Chair, there are no other individuals in the
District Offices nor the Chamber who wish to offer testimony.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Clerk, has any written testimony. been submitted?
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chair, we have received written testimony.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Is there any objection to adding the written testimony to the
record?
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
THERE BEING NO OBJECTION, WRITTEN TESTIMONY
RECEIVED FROM THE FOLLOWING WERE MADE A PART
OF THE RECORD OF THIS MEETING:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.

Mike Moran, Kihei Community Association;
Warren Watanabe, Maui County Farm Bureau;
Arine Bulkley;
Sandy Baz, Budget Director;
Jeff Marsh;
Brooke Wilson, Pacific Resource Partnership;
Suzanne Doodan;
Lauren Zirbel, Hawaii Food Industry Association;
Janice Welsh;
Tyler Dos Santos-Tam, Hawaii Construction Alliance;
Margo Cruse; and
Daniel Kanahele.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: If there is no objection, we will now close public testimony.
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Public testimony is now closed.
Members, because of some...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair? Chair, can we have a recess?
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: I realize that I see my Members over here are really anxious to
take a break over here and I can't blame them; however, Mr. Victorino has to leave
us, and if there's no objection, I would like to pull up Bill 85 A BILL FOR AN
ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 14, MAUI COUNTY CODE, RELATING TO
WATER CONSERVATION AND CONTROL OF WATER USAGE DURING
DRINKING SHORTAGES for second reading. If there's no objection, I'd like to pull
that up now. After we hear that then we will take our recess.
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Clerk.

ORDINANCES
ORDINANCE NO.
BILL NO.
85
(2014)
A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 14, MAUI COUNTY
CODE, RELATING TO WATER CONSERVATION AND CONTROL OF
WATER USAGE DURING WATER SHORTAGE
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE TO PASS BILL 85 ON SECOND AND FINAL
READING.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE:
SECOND THE MOTION, CHAIR.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. Victorino, seconded by Mr. White.
Discussion, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Mr. Chair, we have had many versions of
legislations relating to water conservation and water shortages over many years.
We've worked on this for over four and a half years. I am proud to say with the solid
provisions and with the guidance that has been given to the Council, the
Administration, and by the members of the public on this matter that this future
resolution or this future ordinance will at least give us guidance for water shortage
and as well as control and water conservation.
I would like to thank everyone that's been involved and all the parties and the many
meetings that we have been doing to get this to this point. I believe more work needs
to be done and will be forthcoming in other Committees as well as the Water
Resource Committee. So I humbly ask my Members for their continued support on
this very important measure.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion?
Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. I have a question for Mr. Wong,
please, as our Corporation Counsel. Mr. Wong, if you could look at Page 3 of the
proposed ordinance under "Declaration of water shortage", please, 14.06A.050. My
question is regarding the language where the Director, approved by the Mayor, "may
declare a water shortage whenever the water supply becomes inadequate in any
area in the County". Now this, our County and our Department has continually said it
has no jurisdiction regarding the Lanai water system.
So if this ordinance moves forward, does it impact the Lanai water system?
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Corporation Counsel.
CORPORATION COUNSEL PATRICK WONG:
Thank you for the question,
Councilmember. I don't know whether or not it was intended to include the system
on Lanai, but I would offer this that the language as I read it means, in my opinion,
whatever water systems that the County currently controls. And if it doesn't currently
control the Lanai system then I would offer that it should not apply to the Lanai
system.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And I appreciate that clarification, Mr. Wong. 'Cause I don't
want any confusion that why now this potential ordinance encompasses the Lanai
system when in the past the Director and the Department's position has always been
it's not a County system, we have no jurisdiction.
I would just say though on behalf of our community, Mr. Chairman, Lanai is one of
the few areas of the County that has an approved Water Use and Development Plan
where according to certain water situations the community has worked on agreeing
where water allocation will go depending upon the situation. And of course, you
know, our plan, residential use is always priority one and I'm sure would be for other
areas of this County. But I just wanted to ensure Lanai people that the County is
being consistent in its position as it regards to the Lanai water system. Thank you
very much.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Hokama.
Any further discussion to the motion on the floor? All right.
Mr. Couch followed by Ms. Cochran, followed by Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I recognize the need that we
have to do this, a water shortage bill as a step in a long process. It's unfortunate that
some testifiers were here today testifying on something that as Mr. White pointed out
does, isn't going to happen until budget. So I would like to just formally request that
this get brought up in budget hopefully before the budget season, if you will, if we can
get it discussed when it is a single topic on the budget.
So I'm in support of this bill because it just starts the framework, it has nothing to do
with the rates, it has nothing to do with multifamily. I fully support a multifamily rate
and will be working hard to get that in the Budget Committee, but as far as this bill is,
we have to have a start and this seems to be a good enough start. I do have some
concerns that one of the later testifiers mentioned about its comprehensiveness, but
as we've said it's a start and maybe we can work on that further as Mr. Victorino said.
Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And during Committee I did have an
opposing vote to this and I will continue my stance on that. I stated my reasons
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during Committee. But hearing testimonies today reinforced that, and as Mr. Couch
mentioned, the testifier Jeff Marsh did bring up some really good points. But yes, this
is a starting point, a document to work from, but in my eyes it definitely needs a lot
more work. And I cannot support it. And as I stated in Committee the first sentence
alone with the usage of Hamakuapoko Well water for me does not sit well. And so I
can go on and on, Chair, but this is not Committee work. And so I just wanted to
state my no vote on this particular bill. Thank you, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Cochran.
Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I know that we've vetted this through in
Committee but I in coming back to review section, one of the sections, the
"Declaration of the water shortage", 14.06A.050 in which Mr. Hokama had brought up
on the floor. I am in concern, I'm very concerned in having complete discretion for
the Director and the Mayor to actually go through with the shortage without Council
approval. I agree that they would have the power to initiate, but at some point I think
that decision should come back to the Council. May it be three months after the
initial declaration for final approval to continue the shortage. It should be brought
back to the Council at some point, maybe one month, two months, three months after
the declaration.
We should as a Council, as a body be able to further on approve just like what the
Federal government would do in declaring war. You know the President would send
out his troops and at some point they would have to come back to the Senate or the
House to declare the war. So I think that giving full and complete discretion to the
Mayor and the Director is I think not a balance of power. That, therefore that being
said, if that section does not get amended I will oppose this bill.
And further on in studying the Boulder ordinance or at least their rules and
regulations in regards to what Mr. Jeff Marsh had presented, I had an opportunity to
actually review a jurisdiction that is highly developed in their drought systems and
triggering mechanisms. And after reviewing or at least skimming through their four
volumes of, skimming four volumes of drought study, they did their studies before
they even enacted their ordinance so they knew what was going to be the triggering
or mechanism to announce or declare a drought. So that being said and further
review and study of all the issues, I will oppose this bill at this point. Thank you,
Chair.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the motion on the floor? If there's no
further discussion, I'll call for the vote. All in favor, signify by saying "aye".
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aye.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Roll call please, Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Could the "no" raise their hands please.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Roll call.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Roll call vote.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Stacy Crivello.

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO:

AYE.

DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Elle Cochran.

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:

NO.

DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Don Couch.

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:

AYE.

DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Riki Hokama.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

AYE.

DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Mike White.

COUNCILMEMBER WHITE:

AYE.

DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Don S. Guzman.

COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN:

NO.

DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Michael P. Victorino.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:

AYE.

DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK:

Vice-Chair Robert Carroll.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL:

NO.

DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK:

Chair Gladys Coelho Baisa.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL:

EXCUSED.

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS COUCH, CRIVELLO,
HOKAMA, VICTORINO, AND WHITE.
NOES:

EXCUSED:

COUNCILMEMBERS COCHRAN, GUZMAN, AND
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.
CHAIR BAISA.

DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chair, there are five "ayes", three "noes", and one Member
"excused". The motion passes.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Members, we are now going to take our morning
recess. We will reconvene at ten minutes after eleven. We now stand in recess.
(THE MEETING WAS RECESSED BY THE CHAIR AT 10:56 A.M., AND WAS
RECONVENED AT 11:11 A.M., WITH ALL MEMBERS PRESENT, EXCEPT
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO AND CHAIR BAISA, EXCUSED.)
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Meeting of December 19, 2014 is now back in session.
Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chair, proceeding with minutes.

MINUTES
The minutes of the Council of the County of Maui's regular meeting of November 7, 2014,
were presented at this time.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
MOVE TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR
MEETING OF NOVEMBER 7, 2014.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. Couch, seconded by Ms. Cochran.
Discussion, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, no discussion.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: All in favor of the motion, signify by saying "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS COCHRAN, COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, WHITE, AND
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES: NONE.
EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO AND
CHAIR BAISA.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; seven "ayes"; two "excused".
Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chair, proceeding with committee reports.
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COMMITTEE REPORTS
COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
14-154
- BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE:
Recommending the following:
1

That Resolution 14-133 , entitled "AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF A
DONATION FROM HYATT KA'ANAPALI TO THE DEPARTMENT OF
PUBLIC WORKS, COUNTY OF MAUI, PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-8,
REVISED CHARTER OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI (1983), AS AMENDED,
AND CHAPTER 3.56, MAUI COUNTY CODE", be ADOPTED;

2.

That Bill 87 (2014), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING
THE FISCAL YEAR 2015 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI AS IT
PERTAINS TO APPENDIX A, PART I, GRANT REVENUE — SCHEDULE OF
GRANTS BY DEPARTMENTS AND PROGRAMS, DEPARTMENT OF
PUBLIC WORKS (MAUI TIMESHARE VENTURE, LLC)", be PASSED ON
FIRST READING and be ORDERED TO PRINT;

3.

That the matter of establishing a traffic impact fee structure, be REFERRED to
the Council Chair for the term beginning January 2, 2015, for referral to the
appropriate standing committee; and

4.

That County Communication 14-282, from the Budget Director, be FILED.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE TO ADOPT THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN
COMMITTEE REPORT 14-154.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Hokama.
Discussion, Mr. White.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Your Budget and Finance Committee met
on December 2, 2014, to consider a Fiscal Year 2015 Budget Amendment, first to
approve the acceptance of a $715,000 contribution from the Hyatt Ka'anapali or any
of its subsidiaries, including Maui Timeshare Venture, LLC, to fulfill Conditions 22 and
28 of a Special Management Area Permit approved on April 10, 2008. And also to
amend Appendix A of the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget by adding that same amount in a
grant to the Department of Public Works entitled "Maui Timeshare Venture, LLC".
In the absence of an ordinance establishing a traffic impact fee, Department of
Planning and the Hyatt Ka'anapali agreed to a contribution of $715,000 to meet
Conditions 22 and 28. And, you know, to the point that the testifier was making, I
understand his concern because we don't have a structure to delineate what these
contributions or fees should be for traffic impact. But this is a process that has been
going on for quite some time regarding traffic impacts as well as other impacts.
So as this item has been referred to the next Council, we will follow up to make sure
that if a fee is, a fee structure is an absolute necessity for us to proceed on this basis
then we'll make that happen. So I ask for the body's support on this motion because
it's important to get this project going. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. White.
Any further discussion to the motion on the floor? Seeing none, all in favor, signify by
saying "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS COCHRAN, COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, WHITE, AND
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES: NONE.
EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO AND
CHAIR BAISA.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; seven "ayes"; no "noes".
Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: For the record, RESOLUTION 14-133 and BILL 87 (2014)
respectively.
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COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
14-155
- BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE:
Recommending that the Communications noted on Exhibit "A" be REFERRED to the
Council Chair for the term beginning January 2, 2015.
County Communication Nos. 09-338, 10-185, 11-16, 11-17, 11-227, 11-290, 12-164,
12-231, 13-9, 13-107, 13-338, 13-351, 13-392, 14-17, 14-97, 14-145, 14-171,
14 210, 14-222, 14-259, 14-266, 14-275; Committee Report No. 10-16;
Miscellaneous Communication relating to Contract C5566 between the County and
Cultural Surveys Hawaii, Inc., for professional services relating to Archaeological
Inventory Survey for the Mokuhinia Ecosystem Restoration Project for the
Department of Management; and Miscellaneous Communication relating to additional
emergency medical services funding from the State.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE TO ADOPT THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN
COMMITTEE REPORT 14-155.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Hokama.
Discussion, Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. This is just the body of referrals that are
being moved from the current Council to the future Council. And just, so I ask for the
body's support in this. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion? Seeing none, all in favor of the motion,
signify by saying "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS COCHRAN, COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, WHITE, AND
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES:

NONE.

EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO AND
CHAIR BAISA.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; seven "ayes"; no "noes".
Mr. Clerk.

COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
14-156
- ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, ENERGY, AGRICULTURE, AND
RECREATION COMMITTEE:
Recommending the following:
1.

That Bill 88 (2014), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND
ORDINANCE NO. 3737 (2010), RELATING TO EXCEPTIONAL TREES IN
THE COUNTY OF MAUI, BY DELETING ITEM M-1, A MORETON BAY FIG
LOCATED AT THE OLD BALDWIN MANOR", be PASSED ON FIRST
READING and be ORDERED TO PRINT;

2.

That Bill 89 (2014), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND
ORDINANCE NO. 3737 (2010), RELATING TO EXCEPTIONAL TREES IN
THE COUNTY OF MAUI, BY DELETING ONE OF THE TWO TRUE KAMANI
TREES LISTED IN ITEM M-17", be PASSED ON FIRST READING and be
ORDERED TO PRINT;

3.

That Bill 90 (2014), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND
ORDINANCE NO. 3737 (2010), RELATING TO EXCEPTIONAL TREES IN
THE COUNTY OF MAUI, BY DELETING ONE OF THE TWO PODOCARPUS
TREES LISTED IN ITEM M-21", be PASSED ON FIRST READING and be
ORDERED TO PRINT;

4.

That Bill 91 (2014), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND
ORDINANCE NO. 3737 (2010), RELATING TO EXCEPTIONAL TREES IN
THE COUNTY OF MAUI, BY ADDING A STAND OF FOUR MONKEYPOD
TREES LOCATED ON SOUTH KIHEI ROAD", be PASSED ON FIRST
READING and be ORDERED TO PRINT;
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5.

That Bill 92 (2014), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND
ORDINANCE NO. 3737 (2010), RELATING TO EXCEPTIONAL TREES IN
THE COUNTY OF MAUI, BY ADDING AN INDIA RUBBER TREE LOCATED
ON BALDWIN AVENUE", be PASSED ON FIRST READING and be
ORDERED TO PRINT;

6.

That Bill 93 (2014), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND
ORDINANCE NO. 3737 (2010), RELATING TO EXCEPTIONAL TREES IN
THE COUNTY OF MAUI, BY ADDING A BERMUDA JUNIPER LOCATED ON
BALDWIN AVENUE", be PASSED ON FIRST READING and be ORDERED
TO PRINT; and

7

That Bill 94 (2014), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND
ORDINANCE NO. 3737 (2010), RELATING TO EXCEPTIONAL TREES IN
THE COUNTY OF MAUI, BY ADDING AN OHIA TREE LOCATED IN THE
WAIKAMOI PRESERVE", be PASSED ON FIRST READING and be
ORDERED TO PRINT.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL:
Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE TO ADOPT THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN
COMMITTEE REPORT 14-156.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. Guzman, seconded by Ms. Cochran.
Discussion, Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair.
Your Economic Development, Energy, Agriculture, and Recreation Committee met on
November 18, 2014 to consider a proposed bill to add to and delete from the list of
exceptional trees in the County, certain trees designated by the County Arborist
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Committee pursuant to Section 12.24A.030, Subsection (C)(8) of the Maui County
Code.
The Arborist Chair informed your Committee the trees were nominated for inclusion
on the list according to their historic/cultural value, age, rarity, location, size, aesthetic
quality, and endemic status as worthy of preservation pursuant to the Section
12.24A.030(C)(8)(a) of the Maui County Code.
With regard to the stand of four Monkeypod trees, the Arborist Chair added there are
no shade trees in South Maui that have been designated as exceptional trees to
date. The Arborist Committee's nomination of these trees was based on size and
aesthetic qualities.
The Interim Director of Parks and Recreation stated that the Department supports the
proposed bill generally. She said the Department would defer to the Department of
Public Works with regards to the Monkeypod trees on South Kihei Road.
The Deputy Director of Public Works informed your Committee that the Department
conducted surveys that determined that the nominated trees on South Kihei Road
were within the public right-of-way. She also indicated designation of the trees as
"exceptional" could have some effect on future construction projects; however, she
added that the Department would have to conduct an Environmental Assessment in
any event.
The Deputy Director also stated that designation of the exceptional trees along South
Kihei Road might require shifting of reconstruction projects to the mauka side of the
road, together with condemning needed land.
The Arborist Chair said that the relocation of these trees in the future, as necessary,
would be acceptable to the Arborist Committee.
Your Committee recommended that the recommendations be set forth in separate
bills in order to allow individual considerations of each nomination. Your Committee
recommended the passage on first reading of seven bills as follows: A, the addition
to the list of a stand of four Monkeypod trees on 980 South Kihei Road; an India
Rubber tree on 3145 Baldwin Avenue; a Bermuda Juniper tree on 3145 Baldwin
Avenue, and an Ohia tree on Waikamoi Preserve. And by the deletion from the list of
these, the deletion from the list as follows: a Moreton Bay Fig tree on Old Baldwin
Manor; one of the two Kamani trees on Lahainaluna High School which has already
been taken down; and a female Podocarpus tree on the property of Martha Moran of
Makawao.
I respectfully ask the Council's support of each of these
recommendations. Thank you, Chair.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Guzman.
Any further discussion?
Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And I just have a comment in regards
to the deletion of the Kamani tree which is situated at Lahainaluna High School. And
since our discussion about that deletion in Committee, I had gone up to the school
and actually spoken to a faculty member of the school, and they are aware of the
pruning that had occurred 'cause this body was told it was due to the pruning.
They were told that the school has no water rights so the water was taken away,
thereby they believe it's 'cause it's lack of water. So for me, it's just a matter of time
then that the second exceptional Kamani tree that is on our list will be deleted and,
you know, disappear off the face of this Earth if it's due to lack of water. So I just
wanted to shed that light upon this one tree we are deleting, that perhaps there's a
little more to it than improper pruning of it. So it does sadden me because it's a
native Hawaiian tree in a very sacred place, the oldest school west of the Rockies,
Lahainaluna. Thank you, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Cochran.
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And that revelation is disturbing a little
bit. I would like to see that we figure out or the Arborist Committee figures out what
needs to be done to make sure that that second tree doesn't get under watered and
therefore it dies. So that's a little bit disturbing.
I would like to ask Corp. Counsel, there was a comment and if you look in the Code,
it says that the list of exceptional trees shall be adopted by the County Council and
shall be deemed incorporated by reference to this section. That sounds like it's an
ordinance saying that the Council has to adopt those, this list. Is that, am I reading
that correctly?
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Corporation Counsel.
CORPORATION COUNSEL: Thank you, Chair. Councilmember Couch, I'm going to read
for you I believe the provision you're referencing. This is Subsection 8. "The
Committee shall establish a list of exception--it should be exceptional--trees in the
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County. The list of exceptional trees shall be adopted by the County Council and
shall be deemed incorporated by reference to this section." All that means is that the
Council is the body charged with the authority to adopt the list. And if you move
down, Subsection 8(A), the second sentence, it says, "The Committee shall
recommend to the County Council for its adoption any addition to the exceptional tree
list." It's a recommendation to this body, the body decides whether to adopt that
recommendation or not. Okay? Does that help you?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. And that...yes, that helps answer the question.
There was a couple pieces of testimony, I think one of them written saying that it says
"shall" so we have to adopt the list. So I just wanted to make sure that that was
clarified for the testifiers and the Members.
CORPORATION COUNSEL: And the short and quick answer is no, you're not required to
adopt the list.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the motion on the floor? Seeing none,
all in favor, signify by saying "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS COCHRAN, COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, WHITE, AND
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES: NONE.
EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO AND
CHAIR BAISA.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; seven "ayes"; no "noes".
Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: For the record, BILLS 88, 89, 90, 91, 92, 93, and 94 (2014),
respectively.
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COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
14-157
- ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, ENERGY, AGRICULTURE, AND
RECREATION COMMITTEE:
Recommending that the communications noted on Exhibit "A" be REFERRED to the
Council Chair for the term beginning January 2, 2015.
County Communication Nos. 11-304, 13-279, 13-325, 13-399, 14-10, 14-60, 14-78,
14-136, 14-159, 14-213, 14-214, 14-215, 14-224, 14-225, 14-276; Miscellaneous
Communication relating to alternative energy production; Miscellaneous
Communication relating to commercial ocean recreational activity fees, fines, and
penalties; Miscellaneous Communication relating to the fees and deposits charged
for the use of park facilities; Miscellaneous Communication relating to a potential
redesign of the South Maui gymnasium in Kihei to a multi-purpose center; and
Miscellaneous Communication relating to volunteer agreements for park
maintenance.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry. Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I'm kind of excited about the trees. I'm
sorry. I apologize. I apologize. Caught me off guard here. Chair, thank you.
I MOVE TO ADOPT THE RECOMMENDATION IN
COMMITTEE REPORT 14-157.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. Guzman, seconded by Ms. Cochran.
Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. Your Economic Development, Energy,
Agriculture, and Recreation Committee met on December 2, 2014, to consider the
referral of certain matters pending before the Committee to the Council Chair for the
upcoming Council term. Your Committee recommended the matters identified in
Exhibit "A" attached to Committee Report 14-157 referred to the Council Chair for
the term beginning January 2, 2015. I respectfully ask the Council's support for these
recommendations.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Further discussion? Hearing none, all in favor,
signify by saying "aye.
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS COCHRAN, COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, WHITE, AND
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES: NONE.
EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO AND
CHAIR BAISA.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; seven "ayes"; no "noes".
Mr. Clerk.

COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
14-158
- HOUSING, HUMAN SERVICES, AND TRANSPORTATION
COMMITTEE:
Recommending that the communications noted on Exhibit "A" be REFERRED to the
Council Chair for the term beginning January 2, 2015.
County Communication Nos. 11-177, 13-204, 13-299, 13-343, 13-344, 14-111,
14-260, Miscellaneous Communication relating to a review of management of the
Hale Makana 0 Waiale Rental Rehabilitation facility; Miscellaneous Communication
relating to the Animal Management Program; Miscellaneous Communication relating
to animal management revolving fund fees and their use; and Miscellaneous
Communication relating to equitably spreading the cost of animal control services to
animal owners.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE TO ADOPT THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN
COMMITTEE REPORT 14-158.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
CHAIR-VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Ms. Crivello, seconded by Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Discussion, Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. Your Housing, Human Services, and
Transportation Committee having met on December 4, 2014, recommended that the
said Communications noted on Exhibit "A" be referred to the Council Chair for the
term beginning January 2, 2015, pursuant to Rule 23(B) of the Rules of the Council. I
ask for my colleague's support.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Further discussion to the motion on the floor?
Hearing none, all in favor, signify by saying "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS COCHRAN, COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, WHITE, AND
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES: NONE.
EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO AND
CHAIR BAISA.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; seven "ayes"; two excused; no "noes".
Mr. Clerk.
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COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
14-159
- INFRASTRUCTURE AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE:
Recommending the following:
1.

That Resolution
14-134 , entitled "AUTHORIZING THE FIRST
AMENDMENT TO BATTERY LICENSE AGREEMENT", be ADOPTED;

2.

That Resolution
14-135 , entitled "AUTHORIZING THE FIRST
AMENDMENT TO THE SVC LICENSE AGREEMENT", be ADOPTED; and

3.

That County Communication 14-236, from the Economic Development
Director, be FILED.

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE TO ADOPT THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN
COMMITTEE REPORT 14-159.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO:
I SECOND, CHAIR.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Ms. Cochran, seconded by Ms. Crivello.
Discussion, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes, thank you, Chair. Your Infrastructure and
Environmental Management Committee met on December 5, 2014, to consider two
revised proposed resolutions authorizing extensions to the Battery License
Agreement and SVC License Agreement between the County and Hitachi Advanced
Clean Energy Corporation.
The Energy Commissioner informed your Committee the Battery License Agreement
allows for operation and maintenance of a stationary lead-acid battery testing facility
housed within a single, 20-foot container and related safety equipment on a portion of
the Kihei Wastewater Treatment Facility. The lead-acid battery functions as a power
storage system to stabilize power outputs from renewable energy resources.
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The SVC License Agreement allows for the operation of a Static Var Compensator
known as "SVC" housed within two 20-foot containers and related cables and utility
lines on a portion of the site of the Department of Public Works, Highways Division,
Makawao Garage. The function of an SVC is to control the voltage of an electrical
distribution network by managing power demands against renewable energy inputs.
The license agreements relate to the JUMPSmart Maui project. JUMPSmart Maui is
a five-year demonstration project that is testing smart-grid technology and an islandwide electric vehicle management system aimed at improving energy efficiency and
integrating more renewable energy from solar and wind power into County's energy
system. JUMPSmart Maui is wholly funded through the Japanese government's New
Energy and Industrial Technology Development Organization, and the project is led
by Hitachi Advanced Clean Energy Corporation in partnership with the County, Maui
Electric Company, Maui Economic Development Board, and other local stakeholders.
The Energy Commissioner supports adoption of the revised proposed resolution to
allow the County to continue to participate in the project. Your Committee notes
Section 3.40.1.80(A), Maui County Code, requires Council approval of any renewal,
or extension, of a lease of County real property when the Finance Director awards
the lease without calling for public bids. This requirement also applies to license
agreement extensions.
Your Committee recommends adoption of the revised proposed resolution and filing
of the communication. I therefore respectfully ask for this Council's support of these
recommendations. Thank you for that long-winded explanation, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Cochran. Any further discussion to the motion on
the floor? Seeing none, all in favor, signify by saying "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS COCHRAN, COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, WHITE, AND
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES: NONE.
EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO AND
CHAIR BAISA.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; seven "ayes"; no "noes"; two excused.
Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: For the record, RESOLUTIONS 14-134 and 14-135,
respectively.

COMMITTEE REPORT
NO.
14-160
- INFRASTRUCTURE AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE:
Recommending that the communications noted on Exhibit "A" be REFERRED to the
Council Chair for the term beginning January 2, 2015.
County Communication Nos. 13-28, 13-29, 13-30, 13-32, 13-33, 13-34, 13-59,
13-135, 13-303, 13-346, 14-113, 14-187, 14-200, 14-226, 14-249, 14-261,
14-277; Committee Report No. 14-143; Miscellaneous Communication relating
to the Pavement Preservation Program (Department of Public Works);
Miscellaneous Communication relating to an evaluation of the Waiko Road
Subdivision sewer system project, including community outreach regarding
costs and impacts to homeowners; Miscellaneous Communication relating to
bridge-design bundling and related cost efficiencies; Miscellaneous
Communication relating to the County's information technology infrastructure,
including updates from the Management Information Systems program and
development of the County's computer security preparedness plan; and
Miscellaneous Communication relating to "sustainability", how it is defined,
and its relationship to Section 8-15.3(4) of the Revised Charter of the County
of Maui (1983), as amended.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE TO ADOPT THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN
COMMITTEE REPORT 14-160.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO:
I SECOND THE MOTION.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Ms. Cochran, seconded by Ms. Crivello.
Discussion, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank...yes, thank you. Your Infrastructure and
Environmental Management Committee met on December 5, 2014, to consider the
referral of certain matters pending before this Committee to the Council Chair for
upcoming Council term. Your Committee recommended the matters identified in
Exhibit "A" attached to Committee Report 14-160 be referred to Council Chair for the
term beginning January 2, 2015. I respectfully ask for this Council's support of these
recommendations. Thank you, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the motion on the floor? Hearing none,
all in favor, signify by saying "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS COCHRAN, COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, WHITE, AND
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES: NONE.
EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO AND
CHAIR BAISA.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; seven "ayes"; no "noes"; two excused.
Mr. Clerk.

COMMITTEE REPORT
14-161
- PLANNING COMMITTEE
NO.
Recommending that the communications noted on Exhibit "A" be REFERRED to the
Council Chair for the term beginning January 2, 2015.
County Communication Nos. 10-253, 11-220, 13-78, 13-137, 13-207, 13-284,
and 14-175.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
I MOVE TO ADOPT THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF
COMMITTEE REPORT 14-161.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. Couch, seconded by Mr. Hokama.
Discussion, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. As with all the other committees, we
met on December 4, 2014, to consider the referral of certain matters pending before
this, your Committee. We recommend that the matters identified in Exhibit "A"
attached to Committee Report 14-161 be referred to Council Chair for the term
beginning January 2, 2015. I respectfully ask for the Council's support of this
recommendations.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the motion on the floor? Seeing none,
all in favor, signify by saying "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS COCHRAN, COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, WHITE, AND
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES: NONE.
EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO AND
CHAIR BAISA.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; seven "ayes"; no "noes"; two excused.
Mr. Clerk.
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COMMITTEE REPORT
- POLICY AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE:
NO.
14-162
Recommending that Resolution 14-136 , entitled "APPOINTMENT OF A MEMBER
TO THE BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY", be ADOPTED.
Appointment of Kula Gaughen-Haili (replacing James Rust) for a term expiring
March 31, 2016.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. With no objections from the
Members, I'm happy to take any requests regarding Committee Reports 14-162 to
14-170.
THEREFORE, I MOVE THAT COMMITTEE REPORTS WITH
ITS RECOMMENDATIONS FROM COMMITTEE
REPORT 14-162 UP TO AND INCLUDING INCLUDING
COMMITTEE REPORT 14-170 BE ADOPTED.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. Hokama, seconded by...who seconded that
motion? Mr. Couch.
Discussion, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman, I would ask if the Clerk would also bring up
the remaining Committee Reports, please.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Clerk.

COMMITTEE REPORT
- POLICY AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE:
14-163
NO.
Recommending that the correspondence dated February 27, 2014, from the
Department of the Corporation Counsel requesting consideration of the possible
settlement of Joshua Nakagawa v. County of Maui, et al., Civil 11-00130 LEK BMK;
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and Anthony Lum-John v. County of Maui, et al., Civil 12-00569 JMS RLP
(Consolidated), be FILED.

COMMITTEE REPORT
- POLICY AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE:
NO.
14-164
Recommending that the correspondence dated July 30, 2014, from the Department
of the Corporation Counsel requesting consideration of the possible settlement of
County of Maui v. Victor Campos, et al., Civil 11-1-0289(3), be FILED.

COMMITTEE REPORT
- POLICY AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE:
NO.
14-165
Recommending that the correspondence dated May 17, 2013, from Councilmember
Mike White, transmitting a proposed resolution entitled "AUTHORIZING THE
EMPLOYMENT OF SPECIAL COUNSEL TO ADVISE AND REPRESENT THE
COUNCIL REGARDING THE POTENTIAL MISUSE OF COUNTY FUNDS", be
FILED.

COMMITTEE REPORT
- POLICY AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE:
NO.
14-166
Recommending that correspondences dated October 13, 2013 from Council Chair
Baisa transmitting correspondences dated August 12, 2013, from the Mayor,
transmitting 12 proposed resolutions, be FILED.

COMMITTEE REPORT
- POLICY AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE:
NO.
14-167
Recommending that Resolution 14-137 , entitled "AUTHORIZING ADDITIONAL
COMPENSATION FOR SPECIAL COUNSEL HUNTON & WILLIAMS LLP, IN
HAWAII WILDLIFE FUND, ET AL V. COUNTY OF MAUI, CIVIL NO. 12-00198 SOM
BMK", be ADOPTED.
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COMMITTEE REPORT
- POLICY AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE:
NO.
14-168
Recommending that Resolution 14-138 , entitled "AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT
OF JAMES P. NELSON V. COUNTY OF MAUI, DISABILITY COMPENSATION
DIVISION CASE NO. 7-11-00780", be ADOPTED.

COMMITTEE REPORT
- POLICY AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE:
NO.
14-169
Recommending that Resolution 14-139 , entitled "AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT
OF TOMMY RUSSO V. COUNTY OF MAUI, ET AL., CIVIL NO. 13-00165 HG RLP",
be ADOPTED.

COMMITTEE REPORT
- POLICY AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE:
NO.
14-170
Recommending that the communications noted on Exhibit "A" be referred to the
Council Chair for the term beginning January 2, 2015.
County Communication Nos. 09-229, 09-314, 12-121, 12-181, 13-45, 13-65, 13-138,
13-181, 13-226, 13-329, 13-349, 14-163, 14-165, 14-279, 14-285: Miscellaneous
Communication relating to transfer of the functions of shoreline and ocean rescue
and safety from Department of Parks and Recreation to Department of Fire and
Public Safety; Miscellaneous Communication relating to cost recovery of helicopter
service provided by Department of Fire and Public Safety; Miscellaneous
Communication relating to Civil 09-1-0245(1); Cabebe et al. v. New Sand Hills, listed
in two reports on the settlement of claims as of March 31, 2013. Miscellaneous
Communication relating to proposed transfer of Grants Management Program from
Department of Housing and Human Concerns to the Department of Finance;
Miscellaneous Communication relating to "cyber breach" insurance as a part of the
County' risk management activities; Miscellaneous Communication relating to cost
recovery for rescues; Miscellaneous Communication relating to water flow
requirements for fire control in rural areas.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No further discussion.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: All those in favor of the motion on the floor, signify by saying
"aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS COCHRAN, COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, WHITE, AND
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES: NONE.
EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO AND
CHAIR BAISA.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; seven "ayes"; no "noes"; two excused.
Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: For the record, respective to Committee Report 14-162 is
Respective to the Committee Report 14-167 is
RESOLUTION 14-136.
RESOLUTION 14-137. Respective to Committee Report 14-168, it's RESOLUTION
14-138, and respective to Committee Report 14-169 is RESOLUTION 14-139.

COMMITTEE REPORT
- WATER RESOURCES COMMITTEE:
14-171
NO.
Recommending that the communications noted on Exhibit "A" be referred to the
Council Chair for the term beginning January 2, 2015.
County Communication Nos. 06-160, 12-133, 14-217; Committee Report No. 12-124;
Miscellaneous Communication relating to optimizing the $12,600,000 investment of
countywide mainline and water infrastructure improvements for Fiscal Year 2015;
Miscellaneous Communication relating to categories of agricultural water rates for
Fiscal Year 2015; Miscellaneous Communication relating to water system
development fee adjustments for Fiscal Year 2015, including possible subsidies,
availability of affordable housing fund assistance, minimizing impacts on real estate
speculation, and rates for Molokai residents and applicants on the Upcountry priority
list.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. White.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE TO ADOPT THE RECOMMENDATION IN
COMMITTEE REPORT 14-171.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Couch.
Discussion, Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. These are the referrals from the Water
Committee to the next Council, so no further discussions necessary. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
Further discussion? Hearing none, all in favor of the motion, signify by saying "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS COCHRAN, COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, WHITE, AND
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES: NONE.
EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO AND
CHAIR BAISA.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; seven "ayes"; no "noes"; two excused.
Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chair, proceeding with County Communications.
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COUNTY COMMUNICATIONS
NO.

- TIVOLI S. FAAUMU, CHIEF OF POLICE,
(dated November 25, 2014)

14-295

Informing of the receipt of $11,840.50 in Forfeiture Funds from the Department of the
Attorney General, State of Hawaii.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE TO FILE COUNTY COMMUNICATION 14-295.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Hokama.
Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. No further discussion.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: All those in favor of the motion, signify by saying "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS COCHRAN, COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, WHITE, AND
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES: NONE.
EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO AND CHAIR
BAISA.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; seven "ayes"; no "noes"; two "excused".
Mr. Clerk.
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NO.

- DANILO F. AGSALOG, DIRECTOR OF FINANCE,
(dated December 3, 2014)

14-296

Transmitting 64 contracts/grants for October 2014.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE TO FILE COUNTY COMMUNICATION 14-296.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Hokama.
Discussion, Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No further discussion.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: All those in favor of the motion on the floor, signify by saying
"aye"
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS COCHRAN, COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, WHITE, AND
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES: NONE.
EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO AND CHAIR
BAISA.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; seven "ayes"; no "noes"; two "excused".
Mr. Clerk.
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NO.

- JO-ANN T. RIDAO, DIRECTOR OF HOUSING AND HUMAN
CONCERNS, (dated December 11, 2014)

14-297

Informing of the abolishment of the Housing Quality Standards Inspector position and
Housing Program Specialist V position.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE TO FILE COUNTY COMMUNICATION 14-297.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Hokama.
Discussion, Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No further discussion.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: All those in favor of the motion on the floor, signify by saying
"aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS COCHRAN, COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, WHITE, AND
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES: NONE.
EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO AND CHAIR
BAISA.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; seven "ayes"; no "noes"; two "excused".
Mr. Clerk.
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NO.

14-298

- ALAN M. ARAKAWA, MAYOR,
(dated December 5, 2014)

In accordance with Section 2.41.040, Maui County Code, informing of a vacancy on
the Kula Agricultural Park Committee due to the resignation of Lorraine Brooks on
December 4, 2014.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. With no objections, Chairman, for
me and the Members, I would ask the Clerk to bring up Communication 299 and 300
also, please.
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any...Mr. Clerk, could you please read those.

NO.

14-299

- ALAN M. ARAKAWA, MAYOR,
(dated December 8, 2014)

In accordance with Section 2.41.040, Maui County Code, informing of a vacancy on
the Council on Aging due to the resignation of Garrett Toma on December 5, 2014.

NO.

14-300

- ALAN M. ARAKAWA, MAYOR,
(dated December 8, 2014)

In accordance with Section 2.80B.080(C), Maui County Code, informing of the
appointment of April Augustiro, Moses Luczon, Edwin Mendija, and John Sprinzel to
the Molokai Community Plan Advisory Committee.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
I MOVE THAT COUNTY COMMUNICATIONS 14-298, 299,
AND 300 BE FILED.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
SECOND.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. Hokama, seconded by Mr. Couch.
Discussion, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: We just thank those residents of Maui County for being
willing to volunteer to provide service to their communities, and we send them our
holiday best to them and their families. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion? Hearing none, all those in favor of the
motion on the floor, signify by saying "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS COCHRAN, COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, WHITE, AND
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES: NONE.
EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO AND CHAIR
BAISA.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; seven "ayes"; no "noes"; two "excused".
Mr. Clerk.

NO.

14-301

- DAVID TAYLOR, DIRECTOR OF WATER SUPPLY,
(dated December 9, 2014)

Transmitting copies of the Department of Water Supply's Monthly Source Report and
Groundwater Use Report for the month ending November 2014.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE TO FILE COUNTY COMMUNICATION 14-301.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Hokama...oh,
Mr. Couch.
Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. No further discussion.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: All those in favor of the motion on the floor, signify by saying
"aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS COCHRAN, COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, WHITE, AND
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES: NONE.
EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO AND CHAIR
BAISA.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; seven "ayes"; no "noes"; two "excused".
Mr. Clerk.

NO.

14-302

- ROBERT CARROLL, COUNCIL VICE-CHAIR,
(dated December 12, 2014)

Relating to Council Member's report on the Ho'oikaika Partnership training, held on
December 10, 2014, at Maui Family Support Services in Wailuku.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. This is in accordance to the 01P
practice, so I'm following up on a report. At the invitation of the Ho'oikaika
Partnership, Councilmembers Mike Victorino, Elle Cochran...
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: We need a motion.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh, okay. I do need a motion on this. Okay, I'm sorry.
I MOVE TO FILE MY REPORT ON OUR ATTENDANCE AT
THE HO'OIKAIKA PARTNERSHIP TRAINING.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Ms. Crivello, seconded by Mr. Couch.
Discussion, Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. As I mentioned earlier, this is in accordance
to Part 1 of Chapter 92 on the HRS, OP practices. At the invitation of the Ho'oikaika
Partnership, Councilmembers Mike Victorino, Elle Cochran, and I attended a
Ho'oikaika Partnership training presentation on the prevention of child abuse. This
training presentation was held at the Maui Family Support Services Building on
Wednesday, December 10, 2014. The Ho'oikaika Partnership is composed of Maui
County agencies and concerned individuals that all have a common interest in the
prevention of child abuse and neglect. Your Council Members had no discussion of
Council business at this training. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
Any further discussion? Seeing none, all those in favor of the motion, signify by
saying "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS COCHRAN, COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, WHITE, AND
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES: NONE.
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EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO AND CHAIR
BAISA.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; seven "ayes"; no "noes"; two "excused".
Mr. Clerk.

NO.

14-303

- MIKE WHITE, CHAIR, BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE,
(dated December 10, 2014)

Relating to County Communication No. 14-246, from the Budget Director,
transmitting the following proposed bills entitled:
1.

"A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2015
BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI AS IT PERTAINS TO ESTIMATED
REVENUES; WAILUKU-KAHULUI COMMUNITY PLAN AREA,
GOVERNMENT FACILITIES, COUNTY SERVICE CENTER; TOTAL
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT APPROPRIATIONS; AND TOTAL
APPROPRIATIONS (OPERATING AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
PROJECTS)"; and

2.

"A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 4130, BILL
NO. 34 (2014), RELATING TO THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION
BONDS OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI (COUNTY SERVICE CENTER)".

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
Without objection, I'd like to ask that this item be moved to the end of calendar.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any objections.
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: It will be moved to the end of the calendar.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY
(THE PROPOSED BILLS ATTACHED TO
COMMUNICATION NO. 14-303 WERE PASSED ON FIRST

Regular Meeting of the Council of the County of Maui
December 19, 2014
Page 74

READING AND ORDERED TO PRINT LATER IN THE MEETING,
AND ASSIGNED BILL NOS. 95 (2014) AND 96 (2014). COUNTY
COMMUNICATION NOS. 14-246 AND 14-303 WERE THEN
FILED. See Pages 89 through 93 for discussion.)

DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chair, proceeding with County Communications for
referral. The following County Communications are recommended for referral to the
Council Chair of the 2015-2017 Council term.

NO.

14-304

- SANANDA K. BAZ, BUDGET DIRECTOR,
(dated December 8, 2014)

Transmitting a proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE
FISCAL YEAR 2015 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI AS IT PERTAINS TO
APPENDIX A, PART I, GRANT REVENUE — SCHEDULE OF GRANTS BY
DEPARTMENTS AND PROGRAMS, DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND HUMAN
CONCERNS (BANDFIELD CHARITABLE TRUST)".
The recommended action is that County Communication No. 14-304 be referred to the
Council Chair for the 2015-2017 Council term.

NO.

14-305

- SANANDA K. BAZ, BUDGET DIRECTOR,
(dated December 8, 2014)

Transmitting a proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE
FISCAL YEAR 2015 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI AS IT PERTAINS TO
APPENDIX A, PART I, GRANT REVENUE — SCHEDULE OF GRANTS BY
DEPARTMENTS AND PROGRAMS, DEPARTMENT of POLICE (KALO
PROGRAM)".
The recommended action is that County Communication No. 14-305 be referred to the
Council Chair for the 2015-2017 Council term.

NO.

14-306

- SANANDA K. BAZ, BUDGET DIRECTOR,
(dated December 8, 2014)

Transmitting a proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE
FISCAL YEAR 2015 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI AS IT PERTAINS TO
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ESTIMATED REVENUES; DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT,
SOLID WASTE ADMINISTRATION PROGRAM - SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT
FUND, SOLID WASTE OPERATIONS PROGRAM - SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT
FUND; DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE, COUNTYWIDE COSTS; TOTAL OPERATING
APPROPRIATIONS; AND TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS (OPERATING AND CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS)" along with the "CERTIFICATION OF ADDITIONAL
REVENUES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015".
The recommended action is that County Communication No. 14-306 be referred to the
Council Chair for the 2015-2017 Council term.

NO.

14-307

- DAVID C. GOODE, DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS,
(dated December 3, 2014)

Transmitting a proposed resolution entitled "ACCEPTING DEDICATION OF
ROADWAY LOTS FOR THE PEAHI HUI LAND SUBDIVISION, PURSUANT TO
SECTION 3.44.015, MAUI COUNTY CODE".
The recommended action is that County Communication No. 14-307 be referred to the
Council Chair for the 2015-2017 Council term.

NO.

14-308

- ROBERT CARROLL, COUNCIL VICE-CHAIR,
(dated December 12, 2014)

Transmitting the matter regarding health and safety concerns relating to the Lower
Nahiku Bridge.
The recommended action is that County Communication No. 14-308 be referred to the
Council Chair for the 2015-2017 Council term.

NO.

14-309

- ROBERT CARROLL, COUNCIL VICE-CHAIR,
(dated December 12, 2014)

Transmitting the matter relating to the proposed Nahiku Community Center.
The recommended action is that County Communication No. 14-309 be referred to the
Council Chair for the 2015-2017 Council term.
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NO.

14-310

- ELLE K. COCHRAN, COUNCILMEMBER,
(dated December 8, 2014)

Transmitting a proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING
TITLE 19, MAUI COUNTY CODE, RELATING TO COMPOSTING".
The recommended action is that County Communication No. 14-310 be referred to the
Council Chair for the 2015-2017 Council term.

NO.

14-311

- WILLIAM SPENCE, PLANNING DIRECTOR,
(dated December 3, 2014)

Transmitting the matter relating to an application submitted by Maui R&T Partners,
Inc., transmitting copies of documents and three proposed bills entitled:
1.

"A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2641 (1998),
KIHEI-MAKENA COMMUNITY PLAN AND LAND USE MAP, FROM
PROJECT DISTRICT 6 (R & T PARK), PUBLIC/QUASI-PUBLIC, AND
AGRICULTURE TO MAUI RESEARCH & TECHNOLOGY PARK FOR
PROPERTY SITUATED AT KIHEI, MAUI, HAWAII";

2.

"A BILL FOR ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 19, MAUI COUNTY CODE, TO
ESTABLISH A NEW CHAPTER 19.38, MAUI COUNTY CODE, FOR MAUI
RESEARCH & TECHNOLOGY PARK SITUATED IN KIHEI, MAUI HAWAII";
and
"A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO CHANGE ZONING FROM KIHEI
RESEARCH AND TECHNOLOGY PARK DISTRICT AND AGRICULTURAL
DISTRICT TO MAUI RESEARCH & TECHNOLOGY PARK DISTRICT
(CONDITIONAL ZONING) FOR PROPERTY SITUATED AT KIHEI, MAUI
HAWAII".

The recommended action is that County Communication No. 14-311 be referred to the
Council Chair for the 2015-2017 Council term.

NO.

14-312

- WILLIAM SPENCE, PLANNING DIRECTOR,
(dated December 2, 2014)

Transmitting a proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING
CHAPTER 19.27, MAUI COUNTY CODE, AND REPEALING CHAPTER 19.615
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RELATING TO PARK DISTRICTS" and minutes of the Maui, Molokai and Lanai
Planning Commissions.
The recommended action is that County Communication No. 14-312 be referred to the
Council Chair for the 2015-2017 Council term.

NO.

14-313

- ROBERT CARROLL, COUNCIL VICE-CHAIR,
(dated December 2, 2014)

Transmitting a proposed resolution entitled "PROPOSING AN AMENDMENT TO
THE REVISED CHARTER OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI (1983), AS AMENDED,
ALLOWING THE COUNCIL TO INITIATE REMOVAL OF THE CORPORATION
COUNSEL".
The recommended action is that County Communication No. 14-313 be referred to the
Council Chair for the 2015-2017 Council term.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Are there any objections to the referrals as read by the Clerk?
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chair, proceeding with ordinances second and final
reading.
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ORDINANCES
ORDINANCE NO.
(2014)
BILL NO.
77
A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING
THE FISCAL YEAR 2015 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI
AS IT PERTAINS TO ESTIMATED REVENUES;
MAKAWAO-PUKALANI-KULA COMMUNITY PLAN AREA,
ROAD IMPROVEMENTS, OLD HALEAKALA HIGHWAY AND
MAKANI ROAD PAVEMENT REHABILITATION;
TOTAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT APPROPRIATIONS; AND
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS (OPERATING AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS)
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. May I ask that Bill 78 and 79 be called up
as well, please.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: If, without objection, I'd like to have Bills 78 and 79 called up
as well since they relate to the same item.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
Mr. Clerk, would you please read the other bill.

ORDINANCE NO.
BILL NO.
78
(2014)
A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 4130,
BILL NO. 34 (2014), RELATING TO THE ISSUANCE OF
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI
(OLD HALEAKALA HIGHWAY AND MAKANI ROAD PAVEMENT REHABILITATION)
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ORDINANCE NO.
BILL NO.
79
(2014)
A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING
THE FISCAL YEAR 2015 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI
AS IT PERTAINS TO APPENDIX A, PART I, GRANT REVENUE SCHEDULE OF GRANTS BY DEPARTMENTS AND PROGRAMS,
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS (FEDERAL HIGHWAY
ADMINISTRATION/INTERMODAL SURFACE TRANSPORTATION EFFICIENCY
ACT (ISTEA) HIGHWAY AND OTHER TRANSPORTATION GRANTS)
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE TO PASS BILLS NO. 77, 78, AND 79 FOR 2014 ON
SECOND AND FINAL READING.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Hokama.
Discussion, Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Bill 77 is an amendment to increase the
Bond/Lapsed Bond Fund by $1,381,750 for the Old Haleakala Highway and Makani
Road Pavement Rehabilitation project. And Bill 78 is simply the companion bill to
increase the General Obligation Bond authorization by the same amount. And 79
recognizes the use of Federal and State funds for the additional amounts required.
And a previous County appropriation was made for this project but only a portion was
expended and will lapse on December 31, 2014.
The project scope has been increased because of the condition of the road was
worse than anticipated. The increase in construction cost and materials will allow the
roadway to last 25 to 30 years. So 80 percent of the project's construction cost will
be covered by Federal funds and 20 percent by the, by County funds, so I ask for the
body's support in this effort. Thank you, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the motion on the floor? Seeing none,
all in favor, signify by saying "aye".
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AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS COCHRAN, COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, WHITE, AND
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES: NONE.
EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO AND CHAIR
BAISA.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; seven "ayes"; no "noes"; two "excused".
Mr. Clerk.

ORDINANCE NO.
(2014)
BILL NO.
80
A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING
THE FISCAL YEAR 2015 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI
AS IT PERTAINS TO ESTIMATED REVENUES;
KIHEI-MAKENA COMMUNITY PLAN AREA,
ROAD IMPROVEMENTS, WAILEA ALANUI DRIVE AND
WAILEA IKE DRIVE PAVEMENT REHABILITATION;
TOTAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT APPROPRIATIONS; AND
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS (OPERATING AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS)
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. May I also call up Bill 81 and 82 since they
are related?
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: No objections?
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Clerk, could you please read the two bills.
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ORDINANCE NO.
BILL NO.
81
(2014)
A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 4130,
BILL NO. 34 (2014), RELATING TO THE ISSUANCE OF
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI
(WAILEA ALANUI DRIVE AND WAILEA IKE DRIVE PAVEMENT REHABILITATION)

ORDINANCE NO.
BILL NO.
82
(2014)
A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING
THE FISCAL YEAR 2015 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI
AS IT PERTAINS TO APPENDIX A, PART I, GRANT REVENUE SCHEDULE OF GRANTS BY DEPARTMENTS AND PROGRAMS,
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS (FEDERAL HIGHWAY
ADMINISTRATION/INTERMODAL SURFACE TRANSPORTATION EFFICIENCY
ACT (ISTEA) HIGHWAY AND OTHER TRANSPORTATION GRANTS)
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE TO PASS BILLS NO. 80, 81, AND 82 OF 2014 ON
SECOND AND FINAL READING.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Hokama.
Discussion, Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: You know the details on this are very similar to those on the
previous three bills and just the difference is in the amounts, and so the County
funding for this project is 1,562,000. And the provision of Federal funds amounts to
4,248,000. So other than that, no further discussion, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion to the motion? Hearing none, all in favor,
signify by saying "aye".
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AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS COCHRAN, COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, WHITE, AND
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES: NONE.
EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO AND CHAIR
BAISA.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; seven "ayes"; no "noes"; two "excused".
Mr. Clerk.

ORDINANCE NO.
BILL NO.
83
(2014)
A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 2.80B.030,
MAUI COUNTY CODE, TO CLARIFY THE APPLICABILITY
OF THE GENERAL PLAN TO MINISTERIAL PERMITS AND APPROVALS
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
I MOVE TO PASS ON SECOND AND FINAL READING BILL
NO. 83.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry. The second? Moved by Mr. Couch, seconded by
Mr. Hokama.
Discussion, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Your Planning Committee considered
a bill to amend Section 2.80B.030 of the Maui County Code to clarify that ministerial
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permits and approvals are not required to comply with the General Plan. Bill 83
improves the clarity of the Maui County Code with regard to ministerial actions and
reduces reliance on legal opinions for interpretation. Representatives from the
Department of Planning and the Department of Public Works informed your
Committee the bill does not change current practices and it codifies the County's
long-standing interpretation. And it also, it complies with the new Countywide Policy
Plan that specifically requests that. I ask for the Members' full support of Bill 83.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion? Seeing none, all in favor, signify by saying
"aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS COCHRAN, COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, WHITE, AND
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES: NONE.
EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO AND CHAIR
BAISA.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; seven "ayes"; no "noes"; two "excused".
Mr. Clerk.

ORDINANCE NO.
BILL NO.
84
(2014)
A BILL FOR ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 2.80B, MAUI COUNTY
CODE, RELATING TO PUBLIC HEARING REQUIREMENTS
FOR AMENDMENTS TO THE MAUI ISLAND PLAN
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
I MOVE TO PASS BILL 84 ON SECOND AND FINAL
READING.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. Couch, seconded by Mr. Hokama.
Discussion, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Your Planning Committee considered
a bill to amend Chapter 2.80B of the Maui County Code to establish that public
hearings on nondecennial amendments to the Maui Island Plan need only be held on
the island of Maui. Section 2.80B.060, Maui County Code, requires the Council to
hold public hearings on nondecennial amendments to the General Plan on Lanai,
Maui, and Molokai. Because the Maui Island Plan is part of the General Plan,
nondecennial amendments to the Maui Island Plan require hearings on all three
islands. Bill 84 changes these requirements so that public hearings on nondecennial
amendments to the Maui Island Plan need only be held on the island of Maui. I ask
for the Members' full support of Bill 84.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Further discussion to the motion on the floor?
Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I am in support of the motion. I do have some
reservations. I can tell you from my experience what happens to this island impacts
Lanai greatly. And so I would say that the role of, that Ms. Crivello and I play are
critical because this is the engine of the County, this island. We understand that. We
understand what it provides to the various districts. And while I understand the logic
and the proposal coming out of the Committee chaired by Mr. Couch, I just want to
state on the record that, you know, for us it's hard for me to make a complete cutoff
and that what happens on the Maui Island Plan in a way is isolated enough that it
doesn't have an impact on my community of Lanai and our residents there. It does,
Chairman, it does. Especially the financial impact that occurs on this island will ripple
and impact Lanai greatly, and I've only got one employer on that island. So if it's
something here that impacts this visitor industry on this island I can tell you it will
impact Lanai more than it impacts here. Because I gotta live with now not a
800-pound gorilla but a 2,000-pound gorilla on Lanai. And, you know, I mean it's the
season, we can smile, but this is very serious work, Chairman. And I just bring it up
that it is a concern at least for me and my island and my community because I know
of its impact on our residents. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Your concerns are noted.
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Any further discussion to the motion? Seeing none, all in favor, signify by saying
"aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS COCHRAN, COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, WHITE, AND
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES: NONE.
EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO AND CHAIR
BAISA.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; seven "ayes"; no "noes"; two "excused".
Mr. Clerk.

ORDINANCE NO.
BILL NO.
86
(2014)
A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 2.96, MAUI COUNTY
CODE, RELATING TO THE RESIDENTIAL WORKFORCE HOUSING POLICY,
AND AMENDING CHAPTER 3.35, MAUI COUNTY CODE,
RELATING TO THE AFFORDABLE HOUSING FUND
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE TO PASS BILL 86 ON SECOND AND FINAL
READING.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Ms. Crivello, seconded by Mr. White.
Discussion, Ms. Crivello.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. The policy enacted in 2006 we believe
was intended to provide a venue for affordable homes. To date, it has just produced
three units selling at affordable rates. And it has... it was tasked to my Committee to
revisit this particular bill. And the recommendations of the task force and subsequent
deliberations of your Committee have resulted in the proposed changes to Bill 86 to
Chapter 2.96, Maui County Code. The task force and your Housing, Human,
Transportation Committee are committed to monitor the effects of the revised policy
and begin our discussion on the incentive component of Chapter 2.96. I would like to
thank my fellow Council Members and the members of the task force for their hard
work in crafting the changes to the policy. Again, I remind everyone that this is a
framework and a work-in-progress. And I am committed to refining this policy in
collaborations with the different entities as well as the builders to create affordable
housing for our community. Members, I ask for your support.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion to the motion on the floor?
Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And in Committee I voted in opposition
and I will continue to stand by my vote. And I just want it to be said clearly that I am
not against affordable housing, workforce housing of any sort. But in my estimation
the percentages that were changed in the bill is not the main reason, you know, for
houses not being built to date. And I truly believe that yes, it's been around a while
but it came at our economic downturn timeframe. And it's been, we've been in a slow
recovery. And so for me it has not been given enough time in a healthy economic
environment. And so those are just a couple reasons.
But I think most of all it, what's disturbing and one of the main reasons I cannot
support it is because current approved developments on our books will not have to
provide as much workforce housing to this community with the changes that have
been made. So with that, Chair, just a brief reason for my opposition to this bill at this
point. But I thank everyone's hard work and trying to vet out as best they can to
create something that hopefully will put some houses on the ground for our
community. Thank you for this time, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion to the motion?
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I strongly thank Ms. Crivello, the
Chairman, Chairperson of the Committee for doing a yeoman's job on herding cats
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and getting this thing at least to this stage. And appreciate all her work. And I'm in
strong support of this bill. You know I did my plea for the slight change in the way
percentage is calculated but the Committee decided to keep it the way it was, so I'm,
I fully support the Committee's work. And thank you, Ms. Crivello.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I speak in support of the motion with
reservations. I've been fortunate, I've sat on both sides of the development table,
worked for a large Hawaiian corporation as well as sat on this side of the approval
process, being a Member of the Council. You know for me I'm happy to support
Chair Crivello. I don't have a problem trying.
I was a supporter of the current policy, Chairman, because I for one am tired of
deadbeat developers, okay, those that made commitments to this County, to our
community, and have yet to fulfill those conditions of approval by providing those
affordable units. So part of the policy's history, Chairman, is because the Council has
learned we cannot take certain developers' word. They will not perform. They
continue to cheat our community of those needed affordables, take the money from
the markets, and for some of them leave our County. We don't need that kind of
businesses here, Chairman. We don't. And whether you want to call them the
Vikings, the pilgrims, whatever the term may be, we don't need them here in this
County.
What we need is those that are responsible, willing to fulfill their conditions of
agreement, and provide the benefits that the whole community gets to utilize. And so
for me I'm happy to give this a try, but if it doesn't, I have no problem coming back
with a heavier spiked stick to beat these guys into compliance or find ways with
Corporation Counsel to either take back that land or down zone those properties.
Because our people deserve those units that have been committed to be provided.
Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the motion?
Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. And . I, you know, I certainly understand
some of the concerns with this, the changes in this measure, but I think the important
piece for me is that as we all know, we have a very, much more protracted approval
process here on Maui than exists in some of our sister counties. So for me the
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important change in this document is that we are addressing a percentage that
actually puts us on a competitive footing with the other counties.
As we all know there are developers that own properties and develop both here on
and in the other counties. So I, it's my belief that it's critical for us to be competitive
with the other counties' percentages of required affordable housing since our
approval process is a bit longer. So I think this is a good measure. Like the others
have stated, including the Chair, this is something that we can adjust as we go
forward. But I think this is a very, a critical move for us at this time to get some of this
housing inventory back on the road to being constructed. So I thank Chair Crivello
for taking this on and coming up with a bill that I think will assist us in moving forward.
So thank you, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion to the motion?
Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I too would like to commend our
Committee Chair for an outstanding job. I have full confidence that she will continue
to use this as a framework to address the other issues that are concerned. I know
during the first reading and also in Committee I stated my concern with the
percentages as it was calculated, as well as any type of incentives for our
developers. There were a lack of incentives, but I believe that our Committee Chair
is going to be addressing that in the next term.
I also believe that this is a not an all, all one solution, all one thing that fixes all the
housing crisis that we have. We've got to step up. I think this next Council is going
to be looking more into affordable housing in other ways and addressing the issues,
even going out and working with the developers, and maybe getting into the business
itself and purchasing our own properties, developing our own affordable housing. But
this bill in itself, by itself is not the solution all in one. But I'll give it a shot.
And like Mr. Hokama and like I've said in the Committee meetings that I will give this
an opportunity, but if this turns out to be a lame duck and another opportunity for
developers to sit on their entitlements, I'm coming down with the hammer, and I've
said that in the Committee. So I'll give it a shot. I'll allow our outstanding Committee
Chair to take the lead on this and I will follow her through. So thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the motion on the floor? Hearing none,
all in favor of the motion, signify by saying "aye".
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AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS COUCH, CRIVELLO,
GUZMAN, HOKAMA, WHITE, AND VICE-CHAIR
CARROLL.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES:

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN.

EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO AND CHAIR
BAISA.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; six "ayes"; one "no"; two "excused".
Mr. Clerk.

DISCUSSION AND ACTION RELATING TO
COUNTY COMMUNICATION NO. 14-303
NO.

14-303

- MIKE WHITE, CHAIR, BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE,
(dated December 10, 2014)

Relating to County Communication No. 14-246, from the Budget Director, transmitting
the following proposed bills entitled:
"A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2015
BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI AS IT PERTAINS TO ESTIMATED
REVENUES; WAILUKU-KAHULUI COMMUNITY PLAN AREA,
GOVERNMENT FACILITIES, COUNTY SERVICE CENTER; TOTAL CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT APPROPRIATIONS; AND TOTAL
APPROPRIATIONS (OPERATING AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
PROJECTS)"; and
2.

"A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 4130, BILL NO.
34 (2014), RELATING TO THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION
BONDS OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI (COUNTY SERVICE CENTER)".

VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
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I MOVE TO DISCHARGE THE BUDGET AND FINANCE
COMMITTEE FROM FURTHER CONSIDERATION OF
COUNTY COMMUNICATION 14-246.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Hokama.
Discussion, Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Your Budget and Finance Committee met
on Tuesday, December 16th, to discuss this amendment. And since the County
recently closed on the purchase of the real property at Maui Business Park Phase II
in Kahului, I believe it's prudent for the design phase to begin early in the new year.
So I ask for support to discharge this matter and move this project forward today.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion? All in favor, signify by saying "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS COCHRAN, COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, WHITE, AND
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES: NONE.
EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO AND CHAIR
BAISA.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; seven "ayes"; two "excused".
Mr. Clerk...or Mr. White, excuse me.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE TO WAIVE THE REQUIREMENTS OF COMMITTEE
REFERRAL AND REPORT AS PROVIDED FOR IN RULE 7(E)
OF THE RULES OF THE COUNCIL.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Hokama.
Discussion, Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No further discussion.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Discussion? All those in favor of the motion, signify by saying
"aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS COCHRAN, COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, WHITE, AND
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES: NONE.
EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO AND CHAIR
BAISA.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; seven "ayes"; no "noes"; two "excused".
Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
I MOVE THAT THE PROPOSED BILL ENTITLED "A BILL FOR
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2015
BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI AS IT PERTAINS TO
ESTIMATED REVENUES; WAILUKU-KAHULUI COMMUNITY
PLAN AREA, GOVERNMENT FACILITIES, COUNTY SERVICE
CENTER; TOTAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT
APPROPRIATIONS; AND TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS"; AND
"A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE
NO. 4130, BILL NO. 34 (2014), RELATING TO THE ISSUANCE
OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF THE COUNTY OF
MAUI" BE PASSED ON FIRST READING AND BE ORDERED
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TO PRINT, AND THAT THE COUNTY COMMUNICATION
14-303 AND 14-246 BE FILED.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Hokama.
Discussion, Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. The purpose of the budget amendment is
to add $1,632,976 in bond appropriation to the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget for the
County Service Center project design to cover costs relating to the design of the
facility which includes architectural and engineering design fees. The second bill
increases the General Obligation Bond authorization by the same amount.
This morning the Department of Management provided additional information
regarding the proposed relocations and the projected lease savings by department. I
believe that after the Committee's discussion on Tuesday and the supplemental
documents, it appears there is justification for the County moving forward with the
design of the new facility and moving departments into a County-owned facility.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the motion on the floor?
Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I speak in support of the motion. I want to thank
Chairman White of our Budget Committee for doing, moving this forward. And I
appreciate Budget Director Baz with his assistance from the Office of Management,
and the CIP team and headed by our own Wendy Taomoto for providing us with
some additional information in the charts they have provided us this morning,
Chairman.
So I appreciate that regarding the Debt Service coverage. And while it's interesting
to see the forecast of Debt Service to potential savings, the environment continues to
change financially. And so I can be very supportive of moving the Chairman's
request forward at this time. But I think what the chart shows is that we need to be
very diligent as we move forward, especially as we look at our Debt Services as well
and our debt levels, because I for one am not very keen on excessive borrowing,
Chairman, as you all know that. But I believe this is a worthy request before the body
at this time and I'm happy to give my support this morning. Thank you, Chairman.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion to the motion on the floor?
Seeing none, all in favor, signify by saying "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS COCHRAN, COUCH,
CRIVELLO, GUZMAN, HOKAMA, WHITE, AND
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed.
NOES: NONE.
EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO AND CHAIR
BAISA.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried; seven "ayes"; no "noes"; two "excused".
Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chair, there's no further business before the Council.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I wish to speak on a point of personal
privilege.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Mr. Chair, this is the last meeting we're having
before, for this term at all and also before...a long time, a 33-year employee here at
the Office of the Council Services is going to retire. So with that I would like to just
present and congratulate Dianne Shimizu for her 39 years of public service to the
citizens of Maui County, including 33 years at the Office of Council Services. We're
grabbing her from somewhere I think.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair, could we just take a...
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: She's coming. She's coming.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Why don't we take a quick recess until she gets here?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sure. We can take a short recess? Oh, there she is.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: She came.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes. Just to read the certificate, the Council, the County of
Maui, be it resolved by the Council of the County of Maui that it hereby extends its
sincere appreciation to Dianne Shimizu, Supervising Legislative Analyst, Office of
Council Services in recognition of your 39 years of public service to the citizens of
Maui County. So wanted to say congratulations and thank you very much for working
very hard for the County of Maui. I've only had a chance to work with her for four
years but she's done a fabulous job since I've known her. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further comments? Congratulations. And we all
hope you truly enjoy your retirement and you come back and see us sometime.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I have the certificate and if nobody else has any
other comments I'd be happy to...
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah, proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair, while Mr. Couch is presenting the certificate, I'd just like
to echo his comments about her good work. It's been very fun and rewarding having
her downstairs. She's been a great asset to our operation. And she doesn't look old
enough to retire so I don't know what the hell is going on here, but I guess we have
no choice but to accept it.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chair, I know everyone would like to say their few words,
but I know Ms. Shimizu for, from the current group the longest. I hate to say she
served with my father too and myself. But, Chairman, you know, as a senior staff,
one who has seen a lot of changes in the development of Council Services from days
when Council members had no actually assistants, everything ran through the
seventh floor and each Member only had one cubicle, if we could use that term.
But what I would ask the indulgence of you and the Members and I know this is still
an official meeting, Chairman, but I would ask for your indulgence under my point of
personal privilege is this lady works a lot to make sure everything is perfect. I would
love for her to do an impromptu comment back to us this morning, 'cause I would like
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to see how she responds with no preparation and no reviewing of somebody else's
work. So if Ms. Shimizu would grace us with a few words 'cause you are going to be
missed, Dianne. We love you very much for your dedication to Council Services.
And we thank you for your family allowing you to serve us, because there's many
nights and days that took you away from them. And we appreciate your husband
Wayne and your sons' support, allowing you to serve the people of Maui County.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair? Before she speaks...
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah. You know this is my first term and I come in with
glassy eyes and, you know, question marks just on my brain cells. And I appreciate
your smiling help, that you're always so cordial and, you know, giving me suggestions
on what route to take. So I too want to express my appreciation. And, young lady,
enjoy your retirement.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry. Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And yeah, Mr. White mentioned how does
just she stay so good looking. I guess if we all stay here that long we too shall find
out we can hold up as Dianne has. But I just want to thank her so much for always
having her door open or coming to our doors, at least to my door and, you know,
asking for suggestions and comments and recommendations before, you know,
providing decisions. So that's what I've always appreciated. But and also having her
and someone else, with past Chair Mateo and doing the talent show. That was, she's
got some moves too, let me tell you. But I just want to say thank you very much,
Dianne. And it's been a pleasure to work here with you. And yes, all the best in your
retirement. I know you won't probably stay, stand still too long, but enjoy yourself.
And we're here for you if you ever need be. And thank you again for your service for
all these years.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you. I also would like to extend my thanks and
gratitude to Dianne helping me through my first term. Was a great assistance in all
facets, professionally as well as personally. Thank you for asking about my family.
Thank you for being that person to smile when I told the stupid jokes. And thank you
for pointing me in the right direction. You will be very much missed by my office and
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my family. So but we'll see you, each other again, I mean in the community. And
don't be a stranger, hang out on the floor once in a while with us. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. It looks like we all have laser cards to
provide Ms. Shimizu. But I would like to reiterate Mr. Hokama's request, that she be
given her three minutes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Because I can't imagine working on the seventh floor without
having a strong yearning for having her very own three minutes to present whatever
she would like to do. So, Ms. Shimizu.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: I think it's a requirement of retirement anyway. Could you please
go to the podium and identify yourself.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: And blushing is allowed.
MS. DIANNE SHIMIZU: Thank you all. Thank you, Council Vice-Chair Bob Carroll,
Members of the Council, my bosses, and my good friends. This is totally unexpected.
I never imagined that this would happen. Frankly, I never imagined that I would ever
retire, but the time has come I think when I need to spend more time with my family,
my husband, exercise, and do the things that, you know, I've never been able to do
because really the Council has been my life and my family.
I thank the Council for giving me the opportunity to have this job, to learn so many
things, to meet so many wonderful people. Yes, Goro Hokama was one of the first
Council Members that I worked with, and through the years I've met many, many
more influential political figures that have become my mentors.
I'm really going to miss you. I mean you're like my second family. But I will keep in
touch. I will come and visit. I will learn new cooking skills after watching The Food
Network all of these years. I'm finally going to cook and give my husband a break.
And then I'll bring all the food over to you so that you can be my guinea pigs.
I look forward to a new chapter in my life, but I will always remember you and what a
big impact the Council has been on me. I'll remember Gwen who was the first
Director who appointed me. Of course Ken Fukuoka. Can never forget Ken. And
now with David and the new supervisor, you're all going to be in very good hands.
Thank you again very, very much. Mahalo.
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VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Members. Oh, Mr. White, would you like, everyone
want to pass leis, you could proceed right now before we adjourn this meeting.
Mahalo. It was a really good way to end the last meeting of the year. To all the
Members and to everyone out there, have a happy holiday season with family and
friends. Be safe, we want to see you next year. With no further business, this
Council meeting is adjourned. . .(gavel).

ADJOURNMENT
The regular meeting of December 19, 2014 was adjourned by the Chair at 12:24 p.m.
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